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2014 12 31
@
12 31
2014 2013

3 5,898,602 717,860 5,156,688 627,569
4 (3,624,470) (441,098)  (4,538,515) (552,337)

2,274,132 276,762 618,173 75,232
12 — — (36,238) (4,410)
5 (222,124) (27,032) (305,837) (37,220)

8 28,467 3,464 21,468 2,613

2,080,475 253,194 297,566 36,214
10 (456,004) (55,496) (128,902) (15,687)

22 1,624,471 197,698 168,664 20,526

@
31
2014 2013

1,624,471 197,698 168,664 20,526

) 8 90,173 10,974 (70,358) (8,563)
/( 17 (18,035) (2,195) 8,712 1,060

1,696,609 206,477 107,018 13,024
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2014 12 31 2013 12 31
11 12,216 1,487 14,339 1,745
12 1,660 202 1,198 146
13,876 1,689 15,537 1,891
13 667,823,041 81,274,064 489,841,270 59,613,683
13 24,404,391 2,970,014 26,263,531 3,196,272
14 219,233,902 26,680,766 225,854,255 27,486,463
15 77,642,208 9,449,057 70,211,487 8,544,738
26 3,586,142 436,433 4,032,081 490,704
992,689,684 120,810,335 816,202,624 99,331,859
13 (641,404,313) (78,058,905)  (457,164,133) (55,636,875)
16 (157,368, 695) (19,151,770)  (190,210,848) (23,148, 660)
18 (155,474,005) (18,921,186)  (133,349,677) (16,228, 656)
(954,247,013) (116,131,861)  (780,724,658) (95,014,191)
38,442,671 4,678,473 35,477,966 4,317,668
38,456,547 4,680,162 35,493,503 4,319,559
19 (16,700,042) (2,032,395)  (15,331,681) (1,865,866)
20 (16,792) (2,044) (17,740) (2,159)
21,739,713 2,645,723 20,144,082 2,451,535
8,22 257,367 31,322 156,389 19,033
21,997,080 2,677,045 20,300,471 2,470,567
21,22 533,447 64,920 533,447 64,920
22 2,862,936 348,419 2,862,936 348,419
( 22 17,286 2,104 17,286 2,104
22 18,583,411 2,261,601 16,886,802 2,055,124
22 21,997,080 2,677,045 20,300,471 2,470,567
2015 25

81/241

R.A.



*

)/

)/

EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

OooooOodd
12 31
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24 87,369 10,633 4,278,692 520,717
(165,607) (20,154) (473,081) (57,574)
(165,607) (20,154) (473,081) (57,574)
14,481 1,762 1,575 192
(168,945) (20,561) (120,280) (14,638)
(154,464) (18,798) (118,705) (14,446)
(2,059) (251) (1,669) (203)
(2,059) (251) (1,669) (203)
— — (296,162) (36,043)
— — 566,418 68,933
— — 270,256 32,890
Y (234,761) (28,570) 3,955,493 481,383
— — 1,950,000 237,315
— —  (5,000,000) (608,500)
— —  (3,050,000) (371,185)
25,26 (234,761) (28,570) 905,493 110,198
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( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
1,379,681 1,007,931
3,762,428 3,715,380
1 266,853 14,740
1 489,640 328,637
5,898,602 5,156,688
GS 2013 150
( )
( )
)
415 (2013 106 ) 55 (2013 51
25 (2013 26 ) 21 (2013 25
22 (2013 147 )
852 (2013 959 )
2014 657 (2013 596 )

489 (2013 84 )
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oooooog
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
3,042,037 3,800,742
100,007 95,769
84,812 80,845
3,660 3,394
180,472 166,665
119,833 110,136
93,649 280,964
3,624,470 4,538,515
87 (2013 84 )
5.3 (2013
0.6 (2013
522
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
222,124 305,837
( 19a )
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
5,856 4,737
7 7
5,863 4,744
1,930 1,400
3 3
8 7
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OooooOodd
2006
(
SI )2008 /410
(
)
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31

696 674

1,400 1,388

111 98

534 503

2,503 2,479

5,244 5,142

338 320

5,582 5,462

2014 12 31 5,730 (2013 5,555 )
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31

2,621,155 3,331,710

314,384 373,016

60,753 55,587

45,745 40,429

3,042,037 3,800,742

83 (2013 10 )
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( )
2008
2014
2016 31
2012 12 31 2014 12 31
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
) (@)
3.80 4.50
4.00 4.00
(1996 11 30 ) 3.10 3.40
(1996 11 30 ) 2.30 2.60
3.30 3.60
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
(@) ( ) ) ( )
6.8 991.6 7.1 969.1
2.5 707.3 4.0 404.9
2.7 118.1 2.9 134.7
1,817.0 1,508.7
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31 2012 12 31 2011 12 31 2010 12 31
1,817.0 1,508.7 1,266.6 1,059.6 1,053.6
1,559.6 1,352.3 1,054.1 927.4 889.6
257.4 156.4 212.5 132.2 164.0
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( )

2014 12 31 2013 12 31

45.7 40.4

45.7 40.4

60.2 49.6

(88.7) (71.1)

(28.5) (21.5)

17.2 18.9

297.8 111.1

19.1 11.0

) (226.7) (192.5)

/C ) 90.2 (70.4)

2014 12 31 2013 12 31 2012 12 31 2011 12 31 2010 12 31
297.8 111.1 57.2 (101.1) 14.0
16.4 7.4 4.5 9.5 1.3
19.1 11.0 17.5 28.5 48.6
1.2 0.8 1.7 3.1 5.5
90.2 (70.4) 60.4 (51.9) 88.2
5.8 5.2 5.7 5.6 9.9
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( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
1,508.7 1,266.6
88.7 71.1
297.8 111.1
43.6 32.3
9.4) 9-2)
'Y (112.4) 36.8
1,817.0 1,508.7
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
1,352.3 1,054.1
45.7 40.4
60.2 49.6
226.7 192.5
(19.1) (11.0)
9.4) 9-2)
'Y (96.8) 35.9
1,559.6 1,352.3
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
156.4 212.5
43.6 32.3
(45.7) (40.4)
28.5 21.5
90.2 (70.4)
)/ (15.6) 0.9
257.4 156.4
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( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
11.4 11.8
40.9 41.9
88.7 71.1
297.8 111.1
386.5 182.2
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
(11.1) (101.3)
2.2 20.2
(8.9) (81.1)
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( RSU )
2013 ( 2013  SIP
)
GSI )
529 2014 (2013 525 )
2013 SIP GSI RSU
RSU RSU
RSU
RSU
( RSU )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31

4,237,913 2,214,358 5,000,853 2,533,081

2,267,175 1,307,601 2,949,686 1,741,276
(77,373) (288,394) (35,652) (219,059)

(3,817,768) — (5,505, 642) —
/C ) 18,953 28,640 7,171 (19,443)
1,463,485 (1,463,485) 1,821,497 (1,821,497)

4,092,385 1,798,720 4,237,913 2,214,358
2014 RSU 153.80 (2013 126.38 )

2014 12 31 2013 12 31 RSU
12.5 11.6
2015 RSU3.7
0.8 RSU
2020
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OooooOodd
2010 10
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
(G ) ( )
10,214,739 90.53 10,256,821 90.55
(5,712,248) 78.94 (41,542) 96.08
_ — (540) 96.08
4,502,491 105.23 10,214,739 90.53
4,502,491 105.23 10,214,739 90.53
169.82 (2013  153.08
)
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
75.00 89.99 3,383,700 4.00 9,078,709 5.00
90.00 119.99 — — — —
120.00 134.99 271,481 0.92 288,720 1.92
135.00 194.99 — — — —
195.00 209.99 847,310 2.51 847,310 3.51
4,502,491 10,214,739
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OooooOodd
10
a.
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
243,315 151,241
39,264 2,275
61,980 59,153
( 100 ) 344,559 212,669
104,801 (117,580)
— 38,317
6,644 (4,504)
« 17 ) 111,445 (83,767)
456,004 128,902
b.
21.5
(2013 23.25 )
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
2,080,475 297,566
21.5 (013 23.25 ) 447,302 69,184
(93,503) 178,608
(6,534) (1,831)
3,064 (10,529)
(23,798) (29,230)
2,501 30,764
(29,101) (30,018)
11,894 4,441
(6,530) (995)
39,264 2,275
344,559 212,669
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2014 12

2014 12
2013 12
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2014 12

2014

2014 12

2014 12
2013 12
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)
25,000 7,921 32,921
361 1,698 2,059
(776) an (793)
24,585 9,602 34,187
14,211 4,371 18,582
2,692 968 3,660
(254) an @71)
16,649 5,322 21,971
7,936 4,280 12,216
10,789 3,550 14,339
)
— 1,267 1,267
_ 462 462
— 1,729 1,729
— 69 69
— 69 69
— 1,660 1,660
— 1,198 1,198
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(@)
(
) 100 250
80 100 * *
*
2014
2014 29
UK ( GSGUK )
( )
595 (296 ) 12 (569 )
GSGUK 191
36 2014 191

GSGUK
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2014 12 31 2013 12 31
1,225,282 3,391,803
16,920,118 20,892,333
1,998,385 2,170,894
1,693,905 556,233
12,217,297 11,440,795
30,675,005 34,740,279
64,729,992 73,192,337
367,155,116 236,325,613
64,636,465 76,662,753
112,717,413 57,229,166
15,964,183 5,446,429
67,024,263 67,248,503
627,497,440 442,912,464
692,227,432 516,104,801
667,823,041 489,841,270
24,404,391 26,263,531
692,227,432 516,104,801
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2014 12 31 2013 12 31
10,735,033 10,325,775
2,279,658 2,663,618
14,626,885 13,775,194
27,641,576 26,764,587
359,427,770 231,757,981
59,747,636 70,760,557
113,264,254 57,063,641
15,892,208 5,403,872
65,430,869 65,413,495
613,762,737 430,399,546
641,404,313 457,164,133
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(2013
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1,333
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( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
131,734,812 136,100,718
87,499,090 89,753,537
219,233,902 225,854,255
)
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
63,403,728 54,460,372
13,710,892 15,025,954
453,676 583,535
34,529 44,250
39,383 22,221
— 75,155
77,642,208 70,211,487
500 (2013 701
981 (2013 180 )
( )
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
62,395,909 104,989,680
94,972,786 85,221,168
157,368,695 190,210,848
)
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Ogoooood
17
(
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
« 15 )
3,036 2,960
(51,473) (31,278)
502,113 611,853
453,676 583,535
(
2014 583,535
(¢ 10a ) (111,445)
(18,035)
(379)
2014 12 31 453,676
18
(
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
110,509 42,560
( 26) 8,637 28,245
( ) 15,544,508 18,960,736
67,073,244 58,457,370
49,463,853 37,856,952
20,992,555 15,273,841
( 19 ) 1,076,675 1,523,525
78,033 —
250,466 234,419
875,525 972,029
155,474,005 133,349,677
1,551 (2013 1,331 ) 328 (2013
234 )
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a. 2014 12 31

65

2013 12 31
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(2013
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65

GS
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( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
3,807,021 3,819,734
9,135,409 8,417,081
671,961 437,242
1,930,117 6,286,679
15,544,508 18,960,736
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
6,458,000 6,458,000
6,386,954 4,205,847
2,702,345 3,549,630
378,547 —
774,196 1,118,204
16,700,042 15,331,681
( PRA
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
471,317 101,325
3,076,081 2,054,357
1,189,828 545,494
1,649,728 1,504,671
6,386,954 4,205,847
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2014

2014 12 31

2012 26

18

17
FRS 12
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OooooOodd
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
1,636,681 967,877
3,058,997 1,990,917
1,691,276 1,247,053
6,386,954 4,205,847
2020 2040
2014 12 31
400 (2013 400 )
2022
( )
17,740
10,000
(10,000)
(948)
16,792
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21
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
) ( ) ) ( )
533,447,150 533,447 533,447,150 533,447
533,447 533,447
22
( )
( )
2013 533,447 2,862,936 17,286 16,779,784 20,193,453
— — — 168,664 168,664
— — — (61,646) (61,646)
( ) — — — 524,935 524,935
— — — (524,935) (524,935)
2014 533,447 2,862,936 17,286 16,886,802 20,300,471
— — — 1,624,471 1,624,471
— — — 72,138 72,138
( ) — — — 528,918 528,918
— — — (528,918) (528,918)
2014 12 31 533,447 2,862,936 17,286 18,583,411 21,997,080
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
18,326,044 16,730,413
( ) 257,367 156,389
18,583,411 16,886,802
23
(2013 )
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OooooOodd
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
2,274,132 618,173
3,660 3,394
522 —
— 2,133
2,139 8,148
207,606 (189,192)
(7,657,549) (7,169,552)
21,993,697 (4,181,309)
1,368,361 3,413,093
(948) 2,435
6,620,353 (4,326,700)
(32,842,153) 8,733,465
(176,122,631) 70,374,922
184,240,180 (63,010,318)
87,369 4,278,692
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
4,003,836 12,777,368
(234,761) 905,493
— (9,867,224)
(191,570) 188,199
3,577,505 4,003,836
(6,458,000) (9,508, 000)
— 3,050,000
(6,458,000) (6,458,000)
(2,880,495) (2,454,164)
FCA CASS
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27

25

19

)

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

OooooOodd
( )
2013 12 31 2014 12 31
4,032,081 (254, 369) (191,570) 3,586,142
(28,245) 19,608 — (8,637)
4,003,836 (234,761) (191,570) 3,577,505
(6,458,000) — — (6,458,000)
(6,458,000) — — (6,458,000)
(2,454,164) (234,761) (191,570) (2.880,495)
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
34,571,820 39,828,253
14,760,347 20,820,153
4,000,528 2,739,920
53,332,695 63,388,326
)
( )
2014 12 31 2013 12 31
107 909
1,497 221
6,957 1,274
90,252 101,824
98,813 104,228
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.2011
GSI
2013
GSI
CDo
(
( ) IKB
AG )
( )
.GSI 2014 21
GSI
10
2014 GSI 2014 10
2014 12
.GSI 2014 23

.GSI 2014 11 25
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ooooOoog
( )
2014 12 31

667,823 — — — 667,823
24,404 — — — 24,404
— 174,527 44,707 — 219,234

— 1,780 75,362 — 77,142

— — 3,586 — 3,586
692,227 176,307 123,655 — 992,189
641,404 — — — 641,404
— 103,492 — 53,877 157,369

— 16,149 — 138,997 155,146

— 5,899 — 10,801 16,700
641,404 125,540 — 203,675 970,619

( )
2013 12 31

489,841 — — — 489,841
26,264 — — — 26,264
— 173,448 52,406 — 225,854

— 1,087 68,424 — 69,511

— — 4,032 — 4,032
516,105 174,535 124,862 — 815,502
457,164 — — — 457,164
— 134,795 — 55,416 190,211

— 18,946 — 114,170 133,116

— 3,181 — 12,151 15,332
457,164 156,922 — 181,737 795,823
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( )
2014 12 31
38,836 638,233 15,158 692,227
— 174,527 — 174,527
— 1,780 — 1,780
38,836 814,540 15,158 868,534
22,785 608,536 10,083 641,404
— 103,368 124 103,492
— 13,412 2,737 16,149
— 5,056 843 5,899
22,785 730,372 13,787 766,944
( )
2013 12 31
45,123 457,568 13,414 516,105
— 173,448 — 173,448
— 907 180 1,087
45,123 631,923 13,594 690,640
22,580 425,390 9,194 457,164
— 133,785 1,010 134,795
— 16,765 2,181 18,946
— 2,694 487 3,181
22,580 578,634 12,872 614,086

2014 2013
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( )
2014 13,414 180 13,594
4,423 — 4,423
2,028 — 2,028
(771) — (771)
(5,096) — (5,096)
2,759 — 2,759
(1,599) (180) (1,779)
2014 12 31 15,158 — 15,158
( )
2014 9,194 1,010 2,668 12,872
2,336 — (132) 2,204
®) — 2 (€)]
982 — 2,954 3,936
(3,180) (886) (1,773) (5,839)
2,293 — 447 2,740
(1,537) — (586) (2,123)
2014 12 31 10,083 124 3,580 13,787
2014 28 27
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2014 18 21
)
2013 16,075 166 16,241
996 14 1,010
1,601 — 1,601
(1,307) — (1,307)
(4,482) — (4,482)
2,463 — 2,463
(1,932) — (1,932)
2013 12 31 13,414 180 13,594
)
2013 9,915 1,927 2,390 14,232
1,272 — 99 1,371
®) — €©) 11
581 — 1,694 2,275
(3,136) 917) (1,540) (5,593)
1,937 — 315 2,252
(1,367) — (287) (1,654)
2013 12 31 9,194 1,010 2,668 12,872
2013 25 23
2013 19 17
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( )
2014 12 31
/

641,404 — — — — — 641,404
74,056 63,446 7,071 10,282 2,418 96 157,369
91,919 13,196 439 50,068 — — 155,622

— 2 4 26 9,110 8,675 17,817
807,379 76,644 7,514 60,376 11,528 8,771 972,212
— 34,572 — — — — 34,572

— 8 16 74 385 80 563
4,001 — — — — — 4,001
4,001 34,580 16 74 385 80 39,136
811,380 111,224 7,530 60,450 11,913 8,851 1,011,348

( )
2013 12 31
/

457,164 — — — — — 457,164
84,331 71,878 13,645 17,708 1,000 1,649 190,211
75,934 14,126 2,331 41,173 — — 133,564

— 2 4 28 7,770 8,719 16,523
617,429 86,006 15,980 58,909 8,770 10,368 797,462
— 39,828 — — — — 39,828

— 9 17 78 409 184 697
2,740 — — — — — 2,740
2,740 39,837 17 78 409 184 43,265
620,169 125,843 15,997 58,987 9,179 10,552 840,727
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— 95
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
MNote LIS5" (Mniy LSS (i
Met revenue 3 58598602 5.156,688
Administrative expenzes 4 (3624470 (4,538,515
OPERATING PROFIT 2274132 618,173
Loss on sale of subsidiary undertaking 12 - (36,238
Imterest payable and similar charges 5 (222,124) (305,837)
Net finance ineame 8 18467 21 468
FROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE
TAXATION 2080475 297 566
Tax on prafit on ordinary activities 10 (4 56,004 ) (128,902
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES AFTER
TAXATION AND FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 22 1,624,471 168,664

et revene and operating profit of the company are derived from continuing operations in the current and prior years.

o the vear ¢nded 31 Decemiber 2014
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Mote LISE 0l LSS (Wi
Profit for the financial year 1624471 168,664
Actuarial gaim / (loss) relating Lo the pension scheme 8 90173 (T0,358)
UK. deferred tax attributable to the actuarial gain [/ (loss) 17 (18,035) 2712
TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES
RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND
SINCE LAST FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 1,626,609 107,018

The notes on pages &4 to 103 form an mtegral part of these fmancial statements.
Independent auditors” repon — pages 39 1o &0,

L]
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL

(unlimited company)
BALANCE SHEET
Fil 1] 4
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
MNote LSS MMy USS 0010
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible azzelz i1 12,216 14339
Investments 12 1,660 1,198
13,876 15537
CURRENT ASSETS
Financial instruments cwied 13 67,523,041 480,841,270
Financial instruments owned pledged as collateral 13 24,404,391 26,263,531
Collateralised agresments 14 219,233 002 225 854 255
Dhebtors 15 77642, 008 TO.211,487
Cagh at bank and m hand 26 3,586,142 4,032,081
G0 GRY 684 816,202,624
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
Financial irstruments sold, but not vel purchazed i3 (641, 404.313) (457,164,133)
Collateralised financing 16 (157, 368,695) (190,210, 848)
Other creditors 18 {155.474,00%) (133,349.67T)
(954,247,013) (TR0, 724 ,658)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 38.442.671 35477 064
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ABAS6 547 35493 503
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN
ONE YEAR 19 (16, 7T00,042) (15,331,681)
PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 20 (16,79 (17,7400
NET ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION SURPLUS 21,739,713 20,144,082
Pension surplus B 22 257,367 156389
NET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION SURPLUS 21,997,080 20300471
CAFITAL AND RESERVES
Called ug share capital 20,22 533447 533447
Share pramium accourd 22 2862, 936 262036
Capital reserve (non-distributable) 22 17,286 17,286
Frofit and loss account 22 18583411 16,886,802
TOTAL SHAREHOLDER'S FUNDS 22 21,997,080 20,300,471

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 25 March 2015 and signed on its behalf by

Pz. Vime
E. A Vince
Director

The notes on pages &4 to 103 form an mtegral par of these fmancial statements.
Independent auditors” report — pages 59 1o 60,
Company numnber: 02263951
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL

(unlimited company)
STATEMENT QF CASH FIOWS
o t wher 200 4
Year Ended Year Ended
3 December 2004 31 December 2013
MNote US5 000 S5 00
MNET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES b 87,360 4,278,692
RETURNS ON INVESTMENTS AND SERVICING OF
FINANCE
Interest paid (165,607) (473,081)
(165,607) (473,081)
TAXATION (PAID} / RECEIVED
Taxation received 14,481 1.575
Taxation paid (168,245) 120, 2840)
(154,464) (118,705)
CAPITAL EXPENDITURE AND FINANCIAL
INVESTMENTS
Payments to acquire tangible fixed asscts {2,058) (1,665)
(2,059 {1,669
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS
Acquisition of units in subsidiary undertaking (256,162
Redemption of wnits in subsidiary undentaking 566,418
- 170256
CASH (OUTLFOW) / INFLOW BEFORE USE OF
FINANCING (234,761) 3055403
FINANCING
Receipts from issuing long-term subordimated debt 1,550,000
Repayment of long-term subordmated debt (5,000, 000
- (3,050,000
{DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH 25, 26 (234,761) 005,493

The notes on pages &4 to 103 form an integral part of these fnancial statements.

Independent auditors” repont — pages 52 to G,
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
4. Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concemn basis, under the historical cost convention
(modified as explained i sogwes 2 and Jm), and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and applicable
accounting standards in the United Kingdorn,  The principal accounting policies are set out below and have
bieen applied consistently throughoat the vear.

b. Consolidation

The company has elected not to prepare consolidated financial statements as permitted by section 402 of the
Companies Act 2006 as its subsidiaries are not material for the purpose of giving a true and Fair view.

¢ Reveme recognition

et revenue has been disclosed instead of tumover as this more meaningfully reflects the nature and results of
the company's activitics.  Net revenue, which is after charging related expenses, includes the net profit arising
from ransactions in securities, foreign exchange and other financial instruments, and fees and commizsions
eamed  Related expenses mchude trading initerest and dividends payable less trading interest and dwidends
receivable,

Financial assels and lnancial liabilities measured ai aic value through profii or loss

Financial assets and financial liabilities held for trading or designated at fair value through profit or boss are
recogmized at fair value with realized and unrealised gains and losses as well as associated interest and dividend
income and cxpenses included innetrevenue,  Financial assets are marked to bid prices and financial liabilities
are marked to offer prices.  Fair valee measurements do not mclude transaction costs.

Invesiment Banking

Fees from financial advizsory engagements and underwriting revenues are recognised in profit and loss when the
relevanl parties are contractually bound and & contract activity progresses unless the right o consideration does
not arise wntil the ocowrence of a critical event, in which case revenue is net recognised until that event has
occurred.

Expenses associated with such engagements are deferred wuntil the related revenue iz recognised or the
engagernent is otherwise concluded.  Expenses associsted with financial advisory engagements are recognised
in administrative expenses, net of client reimbursements.  Underwriting revenues are presested net of related
EXPEnSes.

Investment Management

Management fees are recogrised on an accrual basis and are generally calculated as a percentage of a find of 4
separately managed account’s average net asset value and are recognised over the period that the related service
18 provided.

Incentive fees are calculated as a percentage of a fund's retum or a percentage of a fund’s excess retim above a
specified benchmark or other performance target.  Incentive fees are recogmised only when all material
contingencies have been resolved

Conumissions and Fees

Revenwe from commissions and fees from executing and clearing client transactions on stock, options and
futures markets, as well as OTC ransactions is recognised in et revenue on the day the rade iz executed.

o4
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
d. Operating leases

The comparmy has entered into operating lease arrangements as the lessee,  Leased assets are not recognized on
the balance sheet. Costs in respect of operating leases, adjusted for any incentives granted by the lessor, are
charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term and imcluded within administrative expenses in the prafit and
lesz account,

e, Shori-term emplovee benefits

Short-term employves benefits, such as wages and salaries, are measured on anundiscounted basis and accred as
an expense over the period in which the employee renders the service to the compaury.  Provision is made for
discretionary vear end compensation whether to be paid in cash or share-based awards where, as a result of
company policy and past practice, a consructive obligation exist= at the balance sheet date.

I.  Share-based paymenis

Groug Inc. issues awards in the form of restricted stock units (RSUS") and stock options 1o the compay s
enployees For services rendered Lo the company.  Awards are classified as equity settled and hence the cost of
share-based transactions with emplovess 8 messured based on the gramt-date fair value of the awand
Share-based awards that do not require future service (Le. vested awards, including awards granted to retirement
cligible employecs) are expensed immediately.  Share-based awards that require future service are amortised
over the relevant service periodd Expected forfeitures are included in determining share-based enployee
commpensation expense.

Group Inc. settles equity awards through the delivery of its ordinary shares.  Group Inc. pays cash dividend
couivalents on outstanding RSUs,  The company has also entered into a chargeback agreement with Group Inc,
under which it i committed to pay to Group Ing, the grant-date fair valee as well as subsequent movements in
fair value of those awards to Group Inc. at the time of delivery to its employees,

¢ Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated mto ULS, dollars at rates of exchange niling on the
date the transaction occurred.  Manetary assets and liabilities demominated in foreign curencies are translated
wiko U8, dollars at rates of exchange muling ol the balance sheel date.  Forelgn exchange gams and losses are
recognised in operating profit,

h. Dividends

Final equity dividends are recognised as a liability and deducted from equity in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the company 's shareholder.  Dnterim equity dividends are recogiised and deducted from eguity
when paid.

I.  Penslon costs

The company is a sponsor of a defined contribwtion pension plan and a hvbnd pension plan for the benefit of
cerain employees.  The hybrid pension plan as both a defined benefit section (‘the Plan’) and a defined
coptribution section.  These are accoamted for as follows:

*  Forthe defmed contribution pension plan and the defined contribution section of the hyvbrid pension plan,
the contnbutions payable for the year are charged to operating profit.  Differences between contributions
payable for the vear and contributions actually paid are shown as either accruals of prepayments on the
balance sheet.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

1L ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contimued)
i.  Pension cost {continued)

+  For the Plan, the amounts charged to operating profit are the cumrent service costs, sy past service costs
and ary gains or losses on zettlements and curtailments.  They are included a2 part of stafl costs. The
interest cost and expected refum on assels are shown as a net amount within et finance income,  Actuarial
gaing and lozges are recogrized immediately in the satement of total recognized gaing and lesses, The
Plan is funded, with the assets of the scheme held separately from those of the company, In separate
trustee-administered fimds.  Plan assets are measured at fair value and Plan liabilities are measured on an
actuarial basis using the projected unit method and discounted at a rate equivalent to the cumrent rate of
retum on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent currency and term to the scheme liabilities.  Full
actarial valuations are obtained at beast trienmially and updated at each balance sheet date.  Any surplhss or
deficit of Plan assets over Plan liabilities 15 recognised on the balance sheet as an asset (surplus) or liability
{deficit).

jo  Tangible lxed assets

Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for amy impairment.
Depreciation is included in administrative expenses and is provided on a straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives:

Years
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 3.7

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the shorter of the usefu] economic life of the asset or the
rermaining life of the leaze when the asset is brought intousze.  Depreciation policies are reviewed on an ansiual
basis,

k. Fixed asset investments

Ficed asset investrments are stated al cost or amorlised cost, as applicable, less provision For any impainment.
Amertisation i5 included in administrative cxpenses,

I Cash at bank and in hand

Cazh at bank and m hand is highly liquid overnight depositz held in the ordinary course of business,
m. Financial instroments

i, Recognition and derecognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument.  The regular way purchase and sale of cash mventory B recognised and
derecognised using trade date accounting,

The company derecognises financial asscts when the contractual right to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire of if it transfers the financial azset and substantially all the risk and rewards of ownership of that financial
asset. A financial hability is derecognised only when ot 1= extinguished (1Le. when the obligation specified m the
contract is discharged or cancelled or expires).
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
m.  Financial instroments (continued)
il. Classification and measurement

The company classifies its financial instrurments into the below categories.  The classification depends on the
purpose for which the financial mstrenents were acquired or originated. The compary determines the
classification of its financial mstruments at mitial recommition.

Financial instruments classified =s held for trading inclede financial instruments owned and financial
instrurments sold, but not vet purchased,  This incledes derivative and cash mstruments,  Financial instruments
clazsified a held for trading are imtially recognised at fair value with transaction costs expensed in profit or loss,
Such financial instniments are carried in the balance sheet at fair value and all subsequent gains or losses are
tecopnised in nd revenue,  See v Elr valiie feaiirererits below for further informiation on the measuranent of
finamcial instruments classified as held for rading.

The directors are of the opimon that it would not be appropriate to classify them as currend assel investmenls or
to provide an analysis of such sscurities between those listed and unlisted,

Financdial instruments desi gnated ai fair value throush profit or loss

The company designates certain of its other financial assets and financial liabilities at fair vatue through profit or
less.  Fimancial instrumenis designated at fair value through profit or loss are mitially recognised at fair value
with transaction costs expensed i profit or loss,  Such financial instrurments are carmied in the balance sheet at
fair value and all subsequent gains or losses are recognised in net revenue.  The primary reasons for designating
such financial assets and fimancial habilities at fair value through profit o loss are:

*  The group of financial assets, financial liabilities or both is managed and its performance evaluated on a
fair value basiz; and

*  Tocliminate or significantly reduce ameasurement of recognition mvconsistency that would otherwise anise
froem measuring aszelz or habilities or recognimg the gaing and lesses on therm on different bazes,

Hybirid fimancial instruments are instroments that contain bifircatable einbedded derivatives. I the company
elects to bifurcate the embedded derivative from the associsted debt, the derivative 1s accounted For 8t fair value

and the host contract is accounted for at amertised cost, adjusted for the effective portion of any fair value
hedges. I the company does not elect to bifurcate, the entire hvbrid Anancial instrument 15 designated al Gair
vahie through profit or loss.

Other financial assets and financial habilities designated at fair value through profit or less melude;

*  Resale and substantially all repurchase agrecments;

= Securities borowed and loaned within Fixed Income, Cumrency and Commodities Client Execution;

= Substaptiallty all secured debt securities issued, which incledes cortain hybrid financial mstroments and
transfers of assets accounted for as financings rather than sales;

+  Certain unsecured debt securities issued, including certain hybrid financial instruments; and

= Certain deblors, including transfers of assets accounted for as secured loans rather than purchases.

67
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

L ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
m.  Financial instroments (continued)

These financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value are generally valued based on discounted cash flow
techniques, which incorporate inputs with reasonable levels of price transparency, and are genecally classified as
level 2 becanse the inpuls are observable,  Valuation adjustments may be made for liquidity and for
counterparty and the G Group’s credit quality.

Loans and receivables; and financial liabilities measured st amortised cost

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
queded inan active market.  They include certain collateralised agreements, substantially all debtors and cash at
bank and in hand. Such financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs and
subzsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method (see below).  Finance revenue is
recorded innet revenme

Fmancial habilities measured at amortised cost include certain colbteralised financing and substantially all sther
creditors,  Such financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value plus transactions costs and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method (sec below),  Finance costs, mcluding discounts
allowed on tssue, are recorded i net revenue with the exception of interest on long-term subordinated loans,
which i recorded in interest payvable and similar charges,

The effective interest methed is a method of caleulating the amertized cost of a financial asset or a financial
liablity (or a group of financial assets or financial liabilities) and of allocating the interest income or interest
copense over the relevant period.  The effective interest rate i= the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when asppropriate, s shorter
peried to the net carrving amount of the financial asset or financial liability, When calculating the effective
uniberest rale, the company estimates cash flows considering all contractual terims of the financial instrument bt
docs not consider fiture credit losses,  The caloulation includes all fees and points paid or received that are an
mnkegral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs, and all other premiwms or discounts.

The comparry assesses its loans and receivables at cach balance sheet date for any objective evidence of
ungairrnent.  1f there 15 objective evidence that an impaimment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss 1s
measimed as the difference between the financial asset’s camying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original efTective interest rate.  The amount of the loss is
included within net revene, if trading related, or in administrative expenses if non-trading related.

fii. Classification of Mnancial Habilities and equily

Financial Habilitiez and equity instromentz are clazsified according to the substance of the contractual
arrangenments.  An equily investment is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the entity
after deducting all liabilities, Instruments are evaluated to determine if they contain both liability and equity
components,  The initial corving amount of a comgound Bnancial instrument 15 allocated first to the Lakility
componend, measured at fair value, and the equity i assigned the residual amount.

Iv. Oifsetting Mnancial assels and Anancial labilities

Financial azzets and financial liabilities are offzet and the net amount presented in the balance heet where there
157

+  Currently a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts; and
= Intent to settle ona nel basis or o realize the azeet and settle the habilite simultaneously.

Where these conditions are not met, financial assets and financial habilities are presented on a gross basis on the
balance sheet,
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
m.  Financial instroments (continued)
v, Fair valve measurements

The far vahie of a financial instrument is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly tramsaction between market participants at the measurement date, ie. the exit price
Fmancial assets are marked to bid prices and financial liabilites are marked to offer prices.  Fair value
measurements do not include transaction costs.  Fair valwe gains or losses are included in nef revenwe,  Certain
financial assets and financial liabilitics are measured as a portfolio (Le. based on its net exposure to market and /
or credit risksh

The best evidence of fair value i a quoted price in an active market.  1f quoted prices in active markets are not
available, far value iz determined by reference to prices for similar instruments, quoted prices of recent
transactions i less active markets, or intemnally developed models that primarily wse market-based or
independently sourced parameters 2 inputs incheding, but not limited to, mterest rates, volatilities, equity or
deb prices, foreign exchange rates, commodities prices, credil spreads and fimding spreads (e the spread, or
difference, between the interest rate at which a borrower could finance a given financial instrument relative to a
beschimark inberest rate).

UK. GAAP has a three-level fair value hierarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements.  The fair vahie
herarchy prionitises inputs to the valuation techniques used to measure fair value, giving the highest prioty to
level 1 anputz and the [owest priority (o level 3 inputz. A fmancial instrement*s level inthe fair value hierarcly
15 based on the lowest level of mput that 15 sigmficant to its fair value measurement.  The far vabue hierarchy 15
a3 follows:

Level 1. Inputs are unadjusted queted prices in active markets to which the company had access at the
measurerment date foe identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

Level 2, Inpusts to valuation techniques are observable, either directly or indirectly.
Level 3. One of more inputs 1o valuation techimgues ae significant and unobservable.

Certain level 2 and level 3 financial assets and financial liabilities may require appropriate valuation adiustments
that a market participant would require 1o armive at far value for factors such a5 counderparty and GS Group®s
credit quality, funding risk, transfier restrictions, illiquidity and bid / offer spreads.  Valuation adjustments are
generally based on market evidence.

Lash instruments

Cash instrumesnils include govermment and agency obligations, bank loans and bridge loamns, comporate debt
securitics, equitics and convertible debentures, and other non-derivative financial instruments owned and
financial instruments sold, but not yvet purchased.  Valuation techniques and significant inputs for each level of
the fair value hierarchy include:

*  Level 1 cash instrumenis that are valued usmg quoted prices for identical unrestricted instnuments in active
markets.

*  Level 2 cash instruments that are valued by verifying to quoted prices, recent trading activity for identical
or gimilar imstruments, broker or dealer quotalicns or altermative pricing sources with reasonable levels of
price transparency.  Consideration is given to the nature of the quotations (e.g. indicative or firm) and the
relaticnship of recent market activity to the prices provided from allernative pricing sournces.

6%

132/241



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

L ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
m.  Financial instroments (continued)

Valuation adjustment= are typically made to level 2 cash instrument= (i) if' the cash instrument is subject to
transfer restrictions and £ or (i) For other premiums and liquidity discounts that a market participant would
require to arive at fair value.  Valuation adjustrments are generally based on market evidence.

*  Level 3 cash instruments that have one or more significant valuation inputs that are not observable.
Absent evidence to the contrary, level 3 cash instruments are mitially valued at transaction price, which is
considdered to be the best imitial estimate of fairr value  Subseguently, the compamy uses other
methodologies 1o determine fair value, which vary based on the type of instrument,  Valuation inpats and
assirmplions are chinnged when corobormted by substantive observable evidence, including values realised
on sales of financial assets,

Derivatives

Derivatives may be traded on an exchange (“exchange-traded ") or they may be privately negotiated contracts,
which are usually referred o as OTC derivatives.  Certain of the company’s OTC derivatives are cleared and
settled through central clearing counterparties (COTC-cleared ™), while others are bilateral contracts between two
coumterparties (‘bilateral OTC), Valuation techniques and significant inputs for each level of the fair value
hierarchy include:

= Level 1 derivatives mclude shori-tenm contracts for future delivery of securities when the underlying
securty 1s a level 1 instrument, and exchange-traded derivatives if they are actively traded and are valued
at their quoted market price.

+  Level 2 derivatives include OTC derivatives for which all significant valuation inputs are corroborated by
market evidence and exchangeraded derivatives that are not actively traded and / or that are vahied using
models that calibrate to market-clearing levels of OTC derivatives.  In evaluating the significance of a
vahsation input, the company considers, among other factors, a portfolio’s net risk exposure to that mput.

The selection of a particular model to value an OTC derivative depends on the contractual tesmnz of and
specific risks inherent in the instrument, as well as the availability of pricing information in the market.
For derivatives that trade in liguid markets, model selection does not involve significant management
Judgernent because outpuls of models can be calibrated to market-clearing levels.

Valuation models require a variety of inputs, such as contraciual tenms, market prices, vield curves,
discount rates {inclusding those derived from interest rates on collateral received and posted as specified in
credit support agreements for collateralised derivatives), credit curves, measures of volatility, prepayment
rates, loss severity rates and correlations of such mputs.  Significant inputs to the valuations of level 2
derivatives can be verified to market transactions, broker or dealer quotations or other altemnative pricing
sources with reasonable levels of price transparency.  Consideration 15 given to the nature of the
quetations (e.g. indicative or fimm) and the relationship of recent market activity to the prices provided from
altermative pricing sourees.

= Lewvel 3 denvatives are valued using models which utilise observable level 1 and / or level 2 mputs, as well
a5 uncbservable level 3 mputs.  Unobservable imputs include certan comrelations as well as credit spreads,
equity volatility inputz, commaodity prices and commodity volatilities,

Subsequent to the initial valuation of a level 3 derivative, the company updates the level 1 and level 2 inputs to
reflect observable market changes and any resulting gams and losses are recorded in level 3. Level 3 inputs are
changed when comeborated by evidence such as similar market transactions, third-party pricing services and [ or
broker or dealer quotations or other empinical market data,  In circumstances where the companmy cannot verify
the model value by reference Lo market transactions, it is pessible that a different valuation model could produce
a materially different estimate of fair vahse,

T

133/241



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
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L ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
m.  Financial instroments (continued)

Where there is a difference between the initial transaction price and the fair value calculated by internal models,
a gmn or loss 1 recognised afler initial recognition only to the extent that it anises from a change in a factor
(mcluding time) that market participants would consider i sefting a price.

i, Hedge accounting

The company applics hedge accounting for certam interest rite swaps used to manage the interest rate exposure
of certain fixed-rate unsecured long-term and short-tenm borrowings,  To qualify for hedge accounting, the
denvative hedge must be highly effective at reducing the risk from the exposure beng hedeed.  Additionally,
the company must formally decument the hedging relationship at inception and test the hedging relationship to
enzure the derivative hedge continues to be highly effective over the life of the hedging relationship,

n  Collateralised agreements and financing

Collateralised agreements are resale agreements and securities borrowed,  Collateralised financing are
repurchase agreements mmd securilies loaned.  Befer to m. financial instruments, above, for further informstion
on the classification and measurement of these financial instruments,  Collateral received or posted can be in
the form of cash or securities.  Cash collateral is recognised | derecognised when received / paid  Collateral
posted by the company in the form of securities is not derecognised from the balance sheet, whilst collateral
received in the form of securities is not recognised on the balance sheet. I collateral received is subsequently
sold, the obligation to retum the collateral and the cash received are recognised on balance sheet.

o Current and deferred taxation

The tax expense for the peried comprises cumrent and deferred taxation.  Tax is recoonised m the profit and loss
account, except to the extent it relates to items recognised in the staternent of total recognised gains and losses.

Current tax i calculated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in
the countries where the company operates and generates tlaxable income.

Deferred tax iz recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated, but not reversed at the
balance sheet date, where transactions or events have ocoured at that date that will result in an obligation to pay
more tax or a right to pay less tax i the future with the following exceptions;

+  Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that the directors consider that it is more likely than
mol thal there wall be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlyving tming
differences can be deducted.

*  Deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the periods
in which timing differences reverse, based on tax rates and faws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balunce sheet date.

Deferred tax 15 recognised m the profit and loss account or directly in the statement of total recognised gains and
loszes according to where the associated gain or loss, to which the deferred tax is attributable, is recognised.

71
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L ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
p.  Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised i the financial statements when it iz probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required to cettle a present (legal or constructive) obligation, which las arisen as a result of past events,
and for which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.  Legal obligations that may anse
a8 4 resull of proposed new laws are recognised a2 obligations only when the legizlation is virtually certain to be
enacted as drafed.

Contingent liabilities are:

= Possible obligations that arise from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurence,
or nen-occumence, of one o more uncertain fiutire events outside the control of the company; or

+  Present obligations that have arisen from past events but which are not recognised because either an
otitflow of ecomomic benefits iz not probable or the amoum of the obligstions canmot be reliab v measured

Comtingemt liabilities are not recognised in the financial statements.  However, disclosure iz made unless the
probability of settlement 15 remote,

2 REPORTING AND DISCLOSURE EXEMPTIONS
4. FRSS ‘Related Party Disclosures'

The company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Group Ing, whose consolidated financial statements include the
company and are publicly available.  As a result, under the terms of paragraph 3(c) of FRSS, ‘Related Party
Dizclesures”, the compary is exemnpl from disclosing franzactions with companies alko wholly owned within
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.

3 NET REVENLUE

The company’s net revenue is categorized into the following business segments;

Year Ended Year Ended

3 December 2014 31 December 2013

LSS (Wi LSS (Wi
Investment Banking 1,379.681 1,047,931
Institutional Client Services 3762428 3,715,380
Investing % Lending' 266,853 14,740
Investment Management' 480,640 328637
808 602 5,156,658

1 Thecompany hasreclasified TS5 150 mallion of net revamee for 20173 fram Iivesting & Lasdmg to o egtment banagement asocuted with
prondeg nvetng savices bo furd: managed by O35 Group.  Then: i= no smpact 1o tobal net revenie

In addition to transactions entered into with third parties, the company also enters into transactions with affiliates in
the noarial course of business as part of market-making activities and general operations.  Revenues are allocated to,
and received from, such affiliates for these transactions,

Net reverme in the above business scgments includes mterest mcome and imterest expense on cash instnaments,
collateralised amangements, and other pozitions in relastion to the cash generated by, or funding requirements of, such
underlying positions with the exception of interest on long-tenm subordinated loans, which 1= presented in interest
pavable and similar charges (see mote 5 fo the finacial statements),

T2
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NET REVENUE {continued)

Reter to ftem 5 (Renwlts of operations — Segmemnt reporting) in Part 1 of this annual repont for & description and
amaly sis of the company’s segments.

Met revenue includes net interest income of USS415 million (2013: USS106 mulhon) and non-interest ncome of
Us%5.5 billion (2013 US55.1 billion).

Met interest income includes interest meome of USS2.5 billion (201 3; US32.6 billion) and interest expense of USS2.1
billion (2003 USELS5 billion),  Of interest income, USS22 million (2013 USS147 million) relates to parent and
group undertakings and of interest expense, USEE52 mllion (2013: USS059 million) relates to parent and group
undertakings,

Mon-interest income includes commissions and fees income of USS657 million for 2004 (2003 USE596 million),
which iz included within the Institutional Client Services and Investment Management segrments.  Nel revenuse in
Instiutional Chent Services mcludes net losses of USSA89 mullion (2013: USS24 millica) in relabon to the
compary *s financial assets and financial liabilities designated at fair value, The remaining net revenue within
Instiutional Client Services predominately relates to net gains from financial assets and financial habalities held for
trading.

Ceographical Analvsis

Due to the highly integrated nature of international financial markets, the directors consider that the company operates
in a single glebal market.  As a resull, no disclosure of segmental mfonmation relating 1o the geographical origin of

results has been provided.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
LSS 0 LSS ()
Direct costs of employment {(see note 7) 3,042,037 3,800,742
Mark et development 100, 007 95, Teh
Crommmminications and technology 84,812 0,845
Depreciation of tangible fixed assels (see note 113 3 660 3304
Crocupamncy {see nole a) 180,472 166,665
Profeszional fees (see note b) 118,833 110,138
Other cxpenses (see mote ¢} 93,640 280,964
3624470 4,538,515

. Ocoupancy expenses include opersting lease rentals for land and buildings of USS87 million (2013; USS84
millicn )

b. Professional fees include fees payable of USS5.3 million (2013: USES.0 millian) to the company s auditors for
the audit of the compary s annual accounts and fees payvable of USS006 million (201 3: US30.4 million) to the

company 's auditors for other services,

. Other expenses include miscellaneous taxes, charitable contributions, management fees charged by and to group
underiakings relsling to operational and administrative support, managemeni services received from and
provided to affiliates and losses on disposal of tangible fixed asscts of USS522 thowsand (200 3: USSnil).
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INTEREST PAYABLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

LSS (00 LSS (i

Payvable to groap undertakings 222124 S HIT

Interest payable and sirmilar charges payable to group indertakmgs arise on long-term subordinated loans (see note
19a).

DIRECTORS EMOLUMENTS

Year Ended Year Ended

3 December 2014 3 December 2013

LSS (0 LSS (piy
Ageregate emoluments 5,856 4,737
Compammy pension comributions (o money purchase schemes T T
£.863 4,744

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

LSS Wy LSS iy

Highest paid director:

Ageregate emoluments and benefits 1,930 1,400
Company pension comributions to money purchase schemes 3 3
Accrued anmual pension at end of year 8 7

In accordance with the Companies Act 2006, directors’ emoluments above represent the proportion of total
emolments paid or pavable in respect of qualifving services only.  This total only includes the value of cash and
benefits in kind, and does not include the value of equity awards in accordance with the provisions of Schedule 5 of 51
2008 /410, Directors also receive emoluments for non-qualifving services which are not required to be disclosed,

Ome directer is a member of a defined contribution pension plan and one director is & member of the hybrid pension
plan Gneluding the defined benefit section and defined contribition section),  Four directors, includmg the highest
paid director, have been granted Group Inc. shares in respect of lomg-term imcentive schemes during the year.  Two
directors, including the highest paid director, kave exercised aplions during the year,

STAFF COSTS
The average number of stafl {femployees including directors, and consultants and temporary staff) is analvsed below:

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2014 3 December 2013
MNumber Number

Emplovees incduding directors:
Investment Banking 696 674
Institutional Client Services 1,400 1358
Investing & Lending 111 R
Investinent Managemeit 534 503
Support Functions 2503 2470
£244 5142
Consultants and temporary stafl 338 320
5582 462
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STAFF COSTS (continued)

The company has the use of 3 number of individuals who are emploved by affiliated entities and seconded to the
company. These seconded individuals are meluded in the disclosure of headcount and related staff costs.
Consultants and temporary staft costs are included in total direct costs of emplovment, below,  Total headcount as at
31 December 2004 was 5,730 (200 3: 5,555).

The emplovment costz incurred by the company, meluding thosze relating to directorz, were:

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
LSS 00 LI5S i)
Agpregate pross wages and salaries 2.621,155 3,331,710
Emplover’s MNational Insurance Costributions 314,384 373,016
Pension costs, employer contributions to the:
Defined contribution plan and defined contribution section
of the hybrid penston plan 60,753 55,587
Defined benefit section of the hyvbrid pension plan 45,745 40,429
Total direct costs of enplovment 3042037 3,500,742

Total direct cots of emplovment include & charge of USSE3 million (2013: charge of USS1.0 billioan) relating to the
mark-to-market of share-based compensation.

PENSION ARRANGEMENTS

The comgrany sponsors an open pension plan with a hyvbrid structure, having both a defined benefit section {"the Plan’)
and a defined confribution section.  The Plan was closed to new entrants with effect from | April 2002 and was
replaced by a defined comtribution plan.  The Plan allows existing participants to continue to accrue benefits.  In
2014, the company nodified plan participants that it mtends 1o close the Plan to fidure benefit accruals after 31 March
2016,

A full actuarial valuation of the Plan was carried out by a qualified independent actuary as at 31 December 2012 using
the projected unit funding method and updated 1o 31 December 2014,

The major fmancial assumptions used by the actuary underlving the funding of the Plan which had the most significant
effect on the pension cost are set out below:

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

%o PET aHRITN % P DL

Discount rate 380 4.50

Rate of increase in salarics 4.00 4.00

Rate of increase in pensions in pavment

(post-30 Novemnber 1996 accrual ) 310 340
Rate of increase in pensions in defement

(poet=-30 November 1996 accrual) 2.30 2.60

Rate of price mflation 3.30 360

|
A
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PENSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

The xssets in the Plan attributable to the company and the expected rates of refum were;

31 December 20014

31 December 2013

Expected Market Expected Market
rate of return value  rate of return value
Vi P LI USSm Yo Per @unim USSm
F,quil =] 6.8 9ol 71 9.1
Bonds 5 073 4,0 4049
Cash and reinvested cash 7 1181 29 134.7
Total market value of assets 1,817.0 1,508,7
Development of the balance sheet:
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
214 2013 2z 2011 2010
USSm USEm LUSEm USEm USSm
Market value of Plan assets 1,817.0 15087 1,266,.6 1,050 & 10536
Actuaril value of Plan liabilities 1,550.6 1,3523 1,0054.1 9274 06
Surplus in the Plan and pension
asset recognised in the balance
sheet before deferred taxation 2574 156.4 212.5 132.2 164.0

The defined benelit cost was Formed of the following comp onents:

Analysis of amounts charged (o operating profit:
Current service cost
Total charged to operating profit

Analysis of the amount credited to net Minance income:

Interest on Plan liabilities

Expected retum on assels in the Plan
Total eredited to net finance income
Total charged to profit and loss before tax

Analysis of amounts recognised in the statement of Lotal

recognised gains and losses:
Actual less expected gan on assels
Experience gain en liabilities
Laoss on change in assumptions
{financial and demographic)

Total gain / (loss) recognised in the statement of total

recognised gaing and losses helore tax

Year Ended Year Ended
31 Decernber 2014 31 December 2013
UsSSm USSm
457 4.4
457 40,4
60,2 49.6
(88.7) (7L.1)
(28.5) (21.5)
17.2 1589
978 111.1
151 1.0
(2267 {192.5)
90,2 (70.4)

76
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PENSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

History of experience gains and losses are as follows:

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2014 2013 2z 2011 2010
Actual less expected gain /
(lossy on Plan asseis:
Amount (LIS Sm) 297.8 111.1 57.2 (101.1) 14.0
%% of Plan assels at end of
the vear 16.4% T4% 4.5% 2.5% 1.3%%
Experience gain on Plan
liakilities:
Arnourt (LIS Smb 19.1 11.0 17.5 28.5 48.6
%% of Plan liabilites at encd
of the vear 1.2%% 0. 8% 1.7% 3.1% 5.5%
Total actuarial gain/
(loss) recognieed in
staterment of total
recognised gains and
losses:
Amount (LSSm) 0.2 (Tk4) 0.4 (51.9) REZ
%o of Plan liabilitics at end
of the vear L8% 5.2% 57% 5.6% 0.9%%
Analysis of the movernent in Plan assets during the year:
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
USEm USSm
Plan aszets at the stant of the year 1,.508.7 1, 2606.6
Expected retum on Plan aszels BR7 71.1
Actual bess expected gain on assets X078 111.1
Contributions paid — Emplover 436 323
Benefits paid (9.4 (2.2)
Forelgn exchange (lossesh’ gams on translation of Plan asscis (112.4) g
Plan assets af the end of the vear L817.0 1,508,7
Analysis of the movement in Plan liabilities during the year:
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
USEm USSm
Plan liabilities at the start of the vear 1,352.3 1,054.1
Current service cost 43.7 4t
Interest on Plan habilitics 60,2 49.6
Lesz on change in assumphions 236.7 1925
Expericnee gain on liabilities {19.1) (1.0
Benefits paid (9.4) (2.2)
Foreign exchange (gaing) / losses on translation of Plan Labilities (96.8) 359
Plan Habilitles at the end of the vear 1LEEDG 13523
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5 PENSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

Analvsis of the movement in surplus in the Plan during the year:

Surplus m the Plan at the start of the year

Contributions paid — Emplover

Current service cost

Met finance income

Actuarial gain / (loss)

Foreign exchange (losses) / gains on translation of surplus

Surplus in the Plan at the end of the vear

Additional disdosures:

Expected future benefit payments for the vear to
31 December 2015 /31 December 2014
Expected contributions for the year to
31 December 2005 /31 December 2014 — Employer

Actual return on Plan assets during the year ended
31 December 2014 / 31 December 2013

Expected retum on Plan assets
Actual bess expected gain on assets

Actual return on Plan assets

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 2004 31 December 2013
USSm US5m

156.4 2125

43,6 323

5.7 (404

28,5 215

0.2 (T4

(15.6) 0.4

2574 156.4
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
U%8m US%m

114 1.8

40,9 41.9

887 1

2978 111.1

386.5 182.2

Cumulative amounts recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses since the adoption of

FRS17 Retirement Benefits:

31 December 2014

31 December 2013

Actuarial loss relating to the pension scheme
UK. deferred tax attributable to the actuarial loss

Net cumulative amount recognised in the statement of total
recognised gains and losses

1USSm USSm
(1L (101.3)
22 202
(8.9) {81.1)

141/241

oOoOooodn



EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Stock incentive plan

Group Inc. sponsors a stock incentive plan. The Goldman Sachs Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan (201 3)
("the 2013 S[P"), which provides for, amongst others, grants of restricted stock umits (CRSUs") and mcentive stock

'DIIHEEI'IS.

G81 recorded share-based compensation in respect of the amortisation of granted equity awards, net of forfeitures, of
US5529 million for 2004 (2003: USS525 million). The comesponding credit to equity has been transferred to
liabilities a= a result of the terms of the intercompanmy apreements with Group Inc.

Restricted stock units

Group Ine. grants KSUs to GSI's emplovees under the 200 3 51P, which are valued based on the ¢losing price of the
undertying shares on the date of grant after taking into account a liquidity dizcount for any applicable post-vesting
teansfer restrictions. RSUs generally vest and underlving share: of comimon stock deliver &2 outlined i the
applicable REU agrecments.  Employee RSU agreements generally provide that vesting is accelerated in certain
circumstances, such as on retirement, death, dizability and conflicted emplovment.  Delivery of the undertying shares
of common stock 15 conditioned on the graptees satisFring certain vesting and other requirements cutlined m the award
agreements.  The table below presents the activity related to these RSUs.

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Mo, of RS51s No. of RS
Mo Mature Future MNo future Future
service service service service
requirement  requirement requirement requirement
Cutstanding at the beginning of the year 4237913 2,214,358 5000853 2,533,081
Cranted 2267175 1,307,601 2,949,086 1,741,276
Forfeted (77.373) (288394 (35,652) (219,059
Delivered (3817768 - (5.503,642) -
Transtemed m /| (out) 18953 28,640 T.171 (192.443)
Vested 1463488 {1,463 A85) 1,821,497 (1,821 497)
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,092,385 1,748, 720 4237013 2.214,358

The weighted average grant-date fuir value of RSUs gramted during 2014 was USS153.80 (2013: USS126.38). The
fair value of the R8Us granted during the vear ended 31 December 2014 and the year ended 31 December 2013
ineludes a liguidity disceunt of 12.5% and 11.6%, respectively, to reflect post-vesting transfer restrictions of up to 4
VEArs,

In the firsl quarter of 2015, Group Inc. granted 3.7 mullion vear-end RSUs to the company 's employees, of which 0.8
million R5Us require fiture service as a condition of delivery.  These awards are subject to additional conditions as
outlined in the award agreements. Generally, shares imderlying these awards, net of required withholding tax,
deliver over a three-year period but are subject to post-vesting transfer restrictions through January 2020, These
grants are noet inclisded i the above table,
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS {continued)

Stock options

Stock options granted to cmployees generally vest as outlined in the applicable stock option agreement. Mo oplions
have been granted since 2010, In general, options expire on the tenth anmiversary of the grant date, although they
may be subject to carlier termination or cancellation under certain circumstances in accordance with the terms of the

applicable tock option agreement and The Goldman Sachs Amended and Restated Steck Incentive Plan in effiect at

the time of grant. - The table below presents the activity related to stock options.

31 December 20014 31 December 2013

Weighted Weighted
average AVETAZE
Mo, of stock exerse Mo, of stock e cise

options  price (LU55) options price (1J85)

Chutstanding at the beginning of the year 10,214,739 00,53 10,256,821 Q0,55
Exercised (5.712.248) TR (41,5342) Sa.08
Expired - - (SH¥) 26,08
Outstanding at the end of the year 4,502,491 105.13 10,214,739 0.53
Exercisable at the end of the year 4,502,491 105.23 10,214,739 HLE3

For those options exercised during the vear, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was USS169.82

(2013: USS133.08)  The table below presenis oplions cutstanding.

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Welghted Weighted
AVErAge Average
No. of stock renmining No. of stock remaining
options  contraciual options coniractual
outstanding lile (vears) oulstanding life {years)
Exercise Price
575.00-580. 5% 3,383,700 4.00 S9.078,700 5.00
500.00-5119.99 - - - -
S120.00-5134.9% 271,481 0.92 288,720 1.92
£135.00-5194.99 - - - -
5195008200, 9% 847,310 2.51 847,310 351

Outstanding af the end of the vear 4,502,491

10,214,739
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TAX ON PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES

a.  Analysis of tax charge for the vear:

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
LSS (Wi LSS (Wb
Current fax:
UK. comporalion L 243,315 151,241
Adjustments in respect of prior periods 39,264 2275
Owverseas bioation 61 980 59,153
Total current tax (see note 10h) 344,559 212669
Deferred tax:
Provisions and cther tirmng differences 104 801 (117,580)
Effect of decreazed tax rate on openimg assct - 38317
Adjustments in respect of prior peniods 1, 14 {4, 50:4)
Total deferred tax (see note 17) 111,445 (53, 767T)
Tax on profit on ordinary activities 456,004 128,02

b, Factors afTecting tax charge for the year:

The difference between the total current tax shown above snd the amount caloulated by applvine the weighted average
rate of UK. corporation tax applicable to the company for the vear of 21, 5% (2013 23.25%9) to the profit on ordimary

activities before tax 15 as follows:

¥Vear Ended Year Ended
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
LSS (W) LSS e
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 2080475 297,566
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard rate m the UK.

21.5% (2003 23.25%) 447,302 69,184
Timing differences in respect of share-based compensation (93 503) 178 608
Timing differences in respect of pension contribution deduction (6,.534) {1.831)
Accelerated capital allowances and other timing differences 3,0l (10,529
Permument differences (23,798) (29 23:0)
Expenses not dedisctible for tax puposes 2,301 30, Ted
Tax losses surrendered from group undertakings for ml consideration (29,101 (30,018)
Effect of higher taxes on overseas eamings 11.8%4 4441
Exchange differences and other (6,530 (995
Adjustments i respect of prior pertods 39,264 227
Total current tax 344,559 212,669

The timing differences in respect of share-bazed compensation comprizes the net tax effect of the amounts charged to
the profit and loss account during the vear and awards delivered to emplovees during the vear.

8l
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1. TANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

The movements in tangible fixed assets during the year were a3 follows:

Fixtures,
Leasehold Mitings and
improvements Equipment Totad
LSS 000 LSS 000 LSS 0010
Cost
At 1 January 2014 25,000 T.921 32921
Addditions 361 1,698 2.058
Disposals {776 (amn (793)
At 31 December 2014 24,582 9,602 34187
Accumulated depreciation
At 1 January 2014 14,211 4,371 18,582
Charge for the year (zee note 4) 2,692 i 3660
Disposals {254) (a7 (271)
Al 31 December 2014 16,649 52 2197
MNet book value
At 31 December 2014 705G 4,250 12216
At 31 December 2013 10,759 3550 14,339
12, FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
Other
Shares in investmments,
subsidiary other than
undertakings loans Tatal
LI5S 0k LSS ) LSS 000
Cost
At 1 January 2014 - 1,267 1,267
Additions . 42 462
At 31 December 2014 - 1,729 1.729
Accumulated amortisation
At 1 January 2014 - 59 o]
Charge for the vear - - -
At 31 December 2014 . 69 69
MNet book value
Al 31 December 2014 - 1,660 1.660
At 31 December 2013 - 1,198 1,198

Cther investments, other than loans consists of exchange memberships,  The directors consider that the fair value of
investments in subsidiary undertakings and other imvestments, other than loans is not less than their book value
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12.

13,

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (continued)

The subsidiaries over which the comparny exercizes control at the vear end are listed below:

Holding and
Couniry of proportion of Class shares  Number Nature of
Name of company incorporation  voling rights  held held husiness
Goldman Sachs (Cavman) Cary man Ordinary Fmancial
Limited Tslandds 1 shares 250 SETVICES
Ipopeama &0 Fundusz liwvesty oy jny Inwestment
Lamkniety Foland 1P L s fumd

* This subsidiary undertaking is included in the financial statements on the basis of control obtained other than
throwgh votimg rights attached to shares,

During 2014, the company sold 2 ordinary shares of USS1 each, being the entire share capital issued by Goldman
Sachis Intermnational Investments Limited, to Goldman Sachs Group UK Lmmted (GSGUK'), the company’s
immediate parent undertaking, for a total consideration of USS2 effective 29 August 2014,

In the prior year, the company acquired additional units for BRL 595 million (U85296 mallion) and redeemed units for
BELL2 billion (UI55569 million) in Sphere Fundo De Investimente Multimercado — Investimento No Exterior
Credite Privado (*Sphere Fundo®,. The compary then transfierred iis remaning units in Sphere Fundo to GSGUK,
the company’s immediate parent undertaking, The consideration of USSI91 million was satisfied by way of a
short-term lean. The comparmy realized a net loss of USS36 million over the life of this investment due to the
weakening of Brazilian real against U5, dollar.  During 2014, the short-term loan of 755191 million was fully repaid
i the company.

The compary has interests in a number of special purpose vehicles and capital-goaranteed funds which do not meet
the definition of a legal subsidiary, but give rise to the risks and rewards that are, in substance, no different than if they
were legal subsidiaries.  The activities of these special purpose vehicles and the capital -guaranteed fimds consist of
the issuance of loan notes under the terms of a repackaging programme.  These vehicles are consolidated i the
financial statements of GRGUK.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS OWNED AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS SOLD, BUT NOT YET
PURCHASED

Finamncial instruments owned and financial instruments sold, but not vet purchazed comprise financial instraments and
mvesiments within the operating activities of the company. Fmancial instruments owned pledged as collateral
represcnis financial instruments owned and pledged to coumterparties that have the right to deliver or repledge,
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13.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS OWNED AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS S30LD, BUT NOT YET

FURCHASED (contimied)

Financial instruments owned, mcluding financial instrurments owned pledged as collateral, comprises:

Cash Instruments';

Comanercial paper, certificates of deposil, time deposits and other

meney mearkel instruments
Government and agency obligations
Mortgage and other asset-backed loans and securitics
Bank loans and bridge loans
Corporate and other debt obligations
Equities and convertible debentures

Derivative instruments':
Interest rales

Credit

Currencies

Commmodities

Equities

Finamncial msirmments owned
Financial instruments owned pledged as collateral

Financial mstruments zald, but ned vet purchased comprizes:

Cash instruments:

Government and agency obligations
Corporate and other debt obligations
Equities and convertible debentures

Derivative instrumenits:
Interest rates

Credit

Currencies

Comanodities

Equities

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
USE 0iH) LSS (i
1,225,282 3391 803
16,920,118 20,892,333
1,998 385 2.170.8%
1,695,905 556,233
12217297 11,440,795
3,675,005 3. T40.279
64,729,992 73,192,337
367,155,116 236,325,613
64,636,405 76,602,753
112717413 57,229,166
15,964,183 546429
67,024,263 67,248,503
GET 497 440 442,912,464
GU2227 432 £16,104,801
667,823,041 480,841,270
24,404,391 26,263,531
692,227 432 216,104,801

31 December 2004

31 December 2013

LSS DM USS (i
10,735,033 10,325,775
2279658 2063618
14,626,885 13,775,104
27,641,576 26,764,557
350 427,770 231,757,981
59,747,636 70,760,557
113,264,254 57,053,641
15,802 208 5403872
65,430,860 65,413,408
613,762,737 A30, 399, 546
641,404,313 457,164,133

1 The compeny has reclassified U552 3 billion of fnancial sstrements from derivative mlnemends bo cash mistnoments and presented cash
mdruments @ more cabagones a5 ab 31 Decwarner X013 Thers 13 no impact to totsl financial mamumends owned, mcludmg ool

mtrusments oemned pladged s collsteral
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14,

15

16.

COLLATERALISED AGREEEMENITS

Fesale agreements
Securities bomrowed

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
USE 000 LISE" 00k
131,734,812 136,100,718

BT 498 (Fx) 89,753,537
219,233,902 ZIS BS4.255

Of collateralized agreements, USS] 36,9 billion (2013: USE133.3 billion) relates to group undertakings.

DEBTORS
31 December 2004 31 December 2013
LSS iy LISS 00
Amounts due from broker / dealers and customers 63,403,728 54,460,372
Amounts due from parent and group undertakings 13,710,892 15,025,954
Defarred ax (sce note 17) 453,676 583,535
Ciher debhors 34,520 44, 250
Prepayments and accrued income 30,383 22,221
Corperation tax receivable . 75,153
TT.642 208 T 211,487

Debtors inchides USE77.1 billion (2013: USS&9.5 billion) of financial assets and USE300 million (2013: USSTM
million} of non-financial assets.

OF the amounts due from broker/ dealers and customers, USS981 million (201 3: USS180 million) is due inmore than
one vear. These balances relate to secured lending and / or prepaid commodity confracts,

The remaining debtors are all due within oneyear of the balance sheet date,

COLLATERALISED FINANCING
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
LSS 000 LISE" 00k
Repurchase agrecments 62,395,010 104 989,680
Securities boaned 04 972,786 85,221,168
157,365,695 190,210,548

Of collateralised financing, USS105.1 billion (20013: USS1001. 0 billion) relates to group undertakings,

il
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18,

DEFERRED TAX
31 December 2014

31 December 2013

LSS (0 LTSS (Wi

Deferred tax balance comprises (see nofe 15):

Depreciation in excess of capital allowances 3,036 2960

Post-retirement benefits (51.473) (31.278)

Oither timing differences 502,113 611,853
453,676 585,535
USS 00

The movements in the deferred tax balance were as lollows:

At ] January 2014 583,535

Transfer to the profit and loss account for the vear (see note 10a) {111.445)

Transfer tothe statement of total recognised gains and losses for the year (18.035)

Foreign exchange losses (379)

Al 31 Decembeer 2014 453,676

Cher timing differences munly relates to defermred tax inrespect of share-based commpensation.

OTHER CREDITORS
Other creditors, all of which are payvable within one vear of the balance sheet date, comprise:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
LSS (00 LISE" 001
Bank loans 110,509 42,560
Crverdratls (see note 265 8637 28,45
Drebt securities issued (see note a) 15,544,508 18,960,736
Amounts due to broker / dealers and customers 67,073,244 58,457 370
Amounts due to parent and group undertakings — unsecured
borrowirngs 49 463, 853 37,856,952
Amounts due to parent and group undertakings — other unsecured
creditors 20,992 555 15,273,841
Accrual for msmagerent charges pavable to parent and group
undertakings {see note 19d) 1,076,675 1,523,525
Corporation tax payable Ta.033
Odher tacces and social security costs 250,466 234,419
Caher creditors and accneals 875,528 T2 029
LE5. 474,005 133,349,677

Cther creditors includes USS155,1 billion (2013: US$133.1 billion) of financial labilitics and USS328 million (2013;

55234 million) of non-financial liabilities,
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15, OTHER CHREDITORS {(continued)

4. The classification of shon-tenm debt securities is as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

USE 000 LI5S 000

Unsecured debd securities with affiliates 3807021 1R19.78
Unsecured debt securities with external counterpartics 9135409 8417.081
Secured debt securities with affiliates 671 %61 437,242
Secured debt securities with external counterpartics 1930117 6,286,679
15,544,508 15,960,736

Secured debt securities are secured by securities which have been pledged as collateral,  This pledged collateral
is esther recognised within financial instruments owned or sourced through collateralised agreements.

19.  CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

USE 000 LI5S 000
Long-term subordinated loans (see note a) 6, A58, (00 6,4 58,00}
Dbl securities issued (see note b) 6,386,954 4,205 847
Amoants due o parent and group undertakmgs ~ unsecured
borrowings (see note ¢} 2,702,345 3,549,630
Amounts due to parent and groep undertakings - other unsecured
creditors 378547 -
Acerual for management chiarges payable to parent and group
undertakings {see note d) T4 196 1,118,204
16, 70, 42 15331681

As at 31 Decernber 2014 and 31 December 2003, all “creditors: amounts falling duee after more than one year' are
financial liabilities.

. The amounts outstandmg at 31 December 2004 and 31 December 2013 are comprized of long-term subordinated
loams from group undertakings, The loans are unsecured and carry interest at a margin over the U5, Federal
Rezerve's federal funds rate.  The margin i resel on a periodic basis 1o reflect changes in the G5 Group®s
weighted average cost of debt. Long-tem subordinated loans of USS6.5 billion (2013; USS6A.5 billien)
constitute regulatory capital az approved by the PRA and are repavable subject to PRA approval and wpon giving
of receiving at least 5 years” notice to or from the group undertakings.
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19,

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR (continued)

b, The clssification of lomg-term deld securities 15 as follows:
31 December 2014 31 December 2013

USS 000 LISS" 0010
Unsecured del secimties with affiliates 471,317 101,325
Unsecured debt securities with external counterparties 3,076,081 2,054,357
Secured debt securities with affiliates 1189528 545,454
Secured debt securities with external counterparties 1,649, 728 1,504,671
6,386,954 4, 208847

Secured debt secunities are secured by securities which have been pledged as collateral.  Thas pledged collateral
is either recognised within financial instruments owned or sourced through collateralised agreements,

The maturity of debi securities is=ued duwe after more than one vear is as follows:

3 December 2014 31 December 2013

LISZ* 000 LIS 00

I more tham one year, but not more than two v ears 1,636,681 967,877
In more than two vears, but not more than five vears 3058 0407 1,990,917
In more tham five years 1.691.276 1,247,053
6,386,954 4,205,847

Ameunts due in more than five vears predominantly relate to structured debt secumities with maturities falling
from 2020 to 2040, Payments on these secumniies are typically referenced to underlying financial aszets, which
are predomimately interest rate-related.

¢ Amounts due to parent and group imdertakings relate to leng-term unsecured bomowings from affiliates, Asat
31 December 2014, this includes a single loan with a maturity greater than five vears of US $400 million (201 3:
UES400 million)y advanced by Restamove Ireland Limited, a fellow group undertaking, inder the terms of an

uncormmitted loan facility dated 26 June 2002 The facility is unsecured, carries interest at a variable rate and
has a matirity of 1 July 2022

d.  The accrual for management charges (per above and note 18} is in respect of share-based compensation

PROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES

oOoOooodn

LSS 000
At 1 January 2014 17.740
Charge to the profit and loss accoumn 10, 000
Reduction in provision (10 OeCHy
Foreign exchange gain (248)
At 31 December 2014 16,792

The remaining provisions of U517 million are in respect of legal claims made against the company.  Further details
relating to the provisions have nol been disclosed as permitted by accounting standard FRS12, "Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets”, on the grounds that it would be seriously prejudicial to do so,
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21. SHARE CAPITAL
Al 31 December 2014 and 31 December 201 3, share capital comprized:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
Mo. LSS 000 MNa. LIRS D)
Allgtted, called np and fully paid
Ordinary shares of US51 each 533447150 533447 533447150 533447
533447 E33.447

22,  RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN TOTAL SHAREHOLDER 'S FUNDS AND MOVEMENTS ON

RESERVES
Capital
Share reserve Profit Total
Called up premdum (non and loss shareholder's
share capital account distributable) account fumds
LSS (00 USS 000 LISS" Wiy LSS My LSS (M
Al 1 Janwary 2013 533,447 2,862,936 17,286 16,779,784 20193453
Profit fior the financial year - - - 168,664 168,654
Other recosnised losses for the year - - - (61,6463 (6] &)
Share-based payments (see note 9) - - - 524,935 524,935
Marmgement recharge related to
share-based piviments - - - (524,935) (524,935)
At 1 January 2004 £33.447 2,862,936 17286 16,886,802 20300471
Prafit for the financial year - - - 1,624,471 1.624.471
Other recognised gains for the vear - - - 72,138 TL138
Share-based pmyments (sce note 9) - - - 528918 528918
Maragement recharge related to
share-based pavments - - - (52891%) (328.018)
At 31 December 2014 B33447 2,862,936 17286 18,583,411 21,997.050
Pension reserve
31 Decernber 2014 31 December 2013
USS i LSS 0
Profit and losz account excluding pension sumpius 18,326,044 16,730,413
Persion surplus (see note §) 257,367 156,389
Profit and loss accoumt 18,583,411 16,556,802

3. DIVIDENDS PAID

The directors do not recommend the payment of an ordinary dividend in respect of the vear (200 3: USSmil)
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RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING PROFIT TO NET CASH INFLOW FROM OPERATING

ACTIVITIES
31 December 2004 31 December 2013
LSS 0 LSS (i
Operating profit 2274,132 618,173
Depreciation clurges (see notes 4 and 11) 3,660 3304
Loes on sale of fixed assets (see note 4) 522 -
Withhalding taxes related to the redemption of units in
subsidiary undertaking - 2,133
Pension charge net of cash contributions 2139 5148
Adjustment for Foreign exchange losses [ (gains) 207,606 (185197
Increase in debtors (7,657,549) (7.168.552)
Increase / (decrease) m other creditors 21,993 607 (4,181 308)
Inerease in creditors: amounts Billing due after more than one
vear 1,368,361 3413093
(Decrease) [ increase provisions for labilities (9480 2435
Decrease / {mcrease) in collateralised agreements 6,620,353 (4,326, 700)
(Decrease) [ increase in collateralised financing (32,842,153) B.733,465
(Increase) / decrease in financial instnements owned, including
financial instruments owned pledged as collateral (176,122,631) 70,374,922
Increase / (decrease) m fmancial instnuaments sold, but nod vet
purchased 184, 240,180 (63,010,318)
Net cash inflow from operating activities 87,369 4.278,692

RECONCILIATION OF NET CASH FLOW TO MOVEMENT IN NET DEBT

31 Decemnber 2014 3 December 2013
USE Dind LTSS (i
et cazh at the start of the year 4,003 836 12777 368
(Drecrease) / increase in cash (234,761 O05 403
Client money adjustment (see note a) - (9.867,224)
Foreign exchange rate changes (191,570) 188,100
Total cash (see note 26) 3.577.505 4.003.836
Opening borrowings (6. ASR.000) (9, 508,000)
Met decrease in long-term subordinated loans - 3,060,000
Closing borrowings (see note 19) {6, 455,000 {6, 458, 0:00)
Mel debl (see nole 26) {2, 580,495) (2,454,164)

w. Im 2013, following changes in industry practice governmg client money, the accounting treatment inrespect of
client money held under the FCA's CASS Chapter 7 was revised. Az at 31 December 200 3, USE9.9 billion of
cash at bank and i hand were no longer reated a5 the company’s assets with a cormesponding lability in sther

creditors,
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ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET DEBT

Exchange
3 December 2013 Cash Flows Movements 31 December 2014
LSS (0 LTSS B LSS 0ii LSS (i
Cash at bank and in hand 4032081 (254, 365 (191,570 3,586,142
Chverdrafts (28,245) 19,608 - (8.637)
Total cash 4,003,836 {234,761) {191,570) 3,577,505
Long-term subordinated loans
{see note 19) (6,458,000 - - (6,458,004)
MNet horrowings {16, 45, 0010 - - (6,458,000)
MNet debt (see note 25) (2,454,164) (234,761) {191,570) (2,550, 495)
FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
. Thetable below presents the company’s commitments.
31 December 2014 31 December 2013
USS (i LISE 04
Contingent and forward starting resale and securities
bormowing agreements 34,571,820 30828253
Forward starting repurchase and secured lending
agrecments 14,760,347 20820 153
Other < 00, 528 2,730,920
53,332,695 63,358 326

The company enters o resale mnd securdties bormrowing agreements and repurchase and secured lending
agrecmnents that settle st a fiture date, generally within three business days, The company also enters into
commitments to provide contingent financing to its clients and counterparties through resale agreements. The
company s funding of these commutments depends on the satisfaction of all contractual conditions to the resale
agreement and these commitments can expire unused,

Other commitments primarily relate to collateral commitments,

In addition, there are registered charges on the company’s assds which have arisen in the ordinary course of
business.

b. The company leases certain buildmgs on long<erm leases.  Under these leases, which are subject o
rencgofiation &t various intervals specified in the leases, the compary pays all insurance, maintenance and
repairs of these properties,  The rentals that the company is commatted to pay in the next vear are as follows:

31 December 2014 31 December 2013
LISE" 0040 LISE™ 0040
Maturity of lease:

Less than one year 107 Q09
Between one and two years 1,497 221
Between two and five years 6,957 1,274
Over five vears 9,252 101,824
95,813 104,225

|
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27, FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

¢.  The comparry is mwvolved in the below legal proceedings, however it is not practicable to estimate an impact, if
amy, of these proceedings.

i.  The Ewropean Cormmission anmounced in April 2011 that it was infliating proceedings to investigate
further numerous financial services companies, including G351, i comection with the supply of data
related to credit default swaps and in connection with profit sharing and fee smrangements for clearing of
credit default swaps, mwleding potential anticompetitive practices. Om 1 July 2013, the European
Commission issued to those financial services companies a Statement of Objections alleging that they
colluded to limit comgeetition in the trading of exchange-traded unfunded credit dervatives and exchange
trading of credit default swaps more generally, and sefting out its process for determining fines and other
remnedies.  G31's current inderstanding iz that the proceedings related to profit sharng and fee
arrangemnents for clearing of credit default swaps have been suspended indefinitely.

ii. WVarious alleged purchasers of, and counterparties involved in transactions relating to, morigage
pass-through certificates, CDOz and other mortgage-related products (including Aczora Bank, Lid., Basis
Yield Alpha Fund (Master), Demtsche Zentral -Genossenschaftbank and IKB Deutse be Industriebank A()
have filed complaints in the United States against the company and certain of its affiliates, gencrally
alleging that the offering decuments for the securities that they purchased contained unbrue statements of
material fact and material omissions and generally secking rescission and / or damages.  Certain of these
complaints allege frawd and seek punitive dammges,

. GSI is the defendant inan action filed on 21 Jammary 2014 with the High Court of Justice in Lendon by the
Libvan Investinent Authority, relating o mine dervative transactions between the plamtifT and GS1 and
seeking, among other things, rescission of the transactions and unspecified equitable compensation and
damages exceeding USSEL billion. On 4 August 2014, GSI1 withdrew its 10 April 2014 motion for
summary judgment, and on 4 December 2014, the Libyan Investment Authority filed an amended
staterment of claim

iv. GSI iz among the defendants in putative clazs actions, filed beginming 23 May 2014 in the ULS, District
Court for the Southermn District of New Yok, based en alleged violations of the federal antitrnust laws in
comnection with the management of zinc storage facilities,  The complaints seek declaratory, injunctive
and other equitable relicf as well as unspecified monctary damages, including treble damages.

v, GEI s among the defendants named in putstive class actionz relating to trading in platinum and galladiom,
filed beginning on 25 MNovember 2014, in the U.S, District Court for the Southemn District of Mew York,
The complaints generally allece that the defendants violated federal antitrust lows and the Commeodity
Exchange Act in connection with an alfeged conspiracy to manipulate a benchmark for plvsical platinum
aid palladim prices and seek declaratory and wumctive reliel as well as treble damages in an unspeci fied
amounk.

25, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
Certain disclosures required by UK. GAAP in refation o the company's financial risk management and capital

management have been presented alongside other risk management and regulatory information in Part | of this annual
report
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
a.  Finanmcial instroment by category
The table below presents the carrving value of the company ‘s financial assets md financial liabilities by category.

31 December 2014

Total
Held for  Designated Loans and  Amortised carrying
trading at Falr value recelvables cost vilue
USSm USSm LUSSm LSSm LUSEm
Financial assets:
Fmancial mstrurnents owned 667 813 - - - G67 823
Financial mstruments owned pledged
a% collateral 24,404 - - - 24,404
Collateralized agrecments - 174,527 44,707 . 219,234
Debrtors - 1,780 75362 . 77,142
Cash at bank and in hand - - 3,586 - 3,586
Total financial assets 692,227 176,307 123,655 - 992,189
Financial liabilities:
Fimancial matrumernts sold, but pot vet
purchased 641 404 - - - 41 40
Collateralized financing - 103,492 - 53,877 157,369
Chher creditors . 16,149 - 138,997 155,140
Creditors: amounts falling due after
meee than one vear - 5800 - 10,801 18, 700
Total Mnancial liabilities 641,404 125540 - 203,675 70,619
531 Decemher 2013
Total
Held for  Designated Loans and  Amortised carrying
trading at fair value receivables cost value
USSm L5Sm LSSm LSSm L'SEm
Finandal assefs:
Fmancial instruments owned 489 841 - - - 489,841
Fmancial mstrurments owned pledged
as col lateral 25, 264 - i - 26,264
Collateralised agreements - 173 448 52406 - 225854
Diebtors - 1,087 G424 < 60511
C'ach at bark and in hand - - 4,032 - 4,032
Todal financial asselis 216,108 174,535 124,862 % R15.502
Financial liabilities:
Fmancial mstruments sold, but not yet
purchaszed 457,164 - - - 457164
Collateralised financing - 134,795 = 55416 190,211
Cither creditors . 18944 . 114,170 133,116
Creditors: amounts falling due after
more than one year - 3.181 - 12,151 15,332
Total financial labilities 457,164 156,922 . 181,737 TOE 813
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)
b.  Fair valoe hierarchy

The table below presents, by level wathin the fair value hierarchy, financial azetz and Gnancial liabilities measured at
fair value.

31 December 2014

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
USSm L'S5m USSm USSm
Financial assets at falr value:
Financial mstruments owned, including financial
instrurmients owned pledged as collateral 38,836 G38.233 15158 692227
Collateralized agreements - 174,527 - 174,527
Debrtors - 1.780 - 1,780
Total Mnancial assels al Mair vale 38536 514,540 15158 565,534
Financdial Babilities at Fair value:
Fmancial mstrurments sold, but not yet purchased 12,785 08,530 10,083 41,404
Collateralized financing - 103,368 124 103,492
Other creditors - 13412 2,737 16,149
Creditors: amounts Falling due after more than one year - 5,056 43 5,899
Total financial labilities at fair value 22,785 T303T2 13,787 T, 944

31 December 2013

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
L/S5m LUS5m USSm LSS m
Firsncial assets at fair value:
Financial mstnuments owned, including financial
mstruments owned pledeed as collateral 45123 457568 13414 316,105
Collateralized agreements - 173448 - 173.448
Debtors - 27 180 1.087
Total financial assets at fair vabue 45,123 631,923 13,594 690,640
Financial llabilities at fabr value:
Fmaneial mstrurments sold, but not yel purchased 22,580 425390 0194 457,164
Collateralized financing - 133,785 1,010 134,795
Other creditors . 16,765 2181 18,546
Creditors: amounts falling due after more than one year - 2,654 487 3,181
Total Nnancial liabilities at Fair value 212,580 ST8.634 12,572 614,086

During 2004 and 2003, there were no significant transfers between level 1 and 2 fmancial assets and financial
liabilities, The following tables present the changes in fair value for all the financial asscts and financial lisbilities
categorised as level 3. Gains and losses arising on level 3 assets are recogmized within net revenue in the profit and
lo=s account.

If a financial asset or financial lmbility was ransfermed to level 3 durmg a reporting vear, its entire gain or loss for the
vear iz included in level 3. Transfers between levels are recognised at the beginning of the reporting year in which
they occur.  Accordingly, the tables do not include gams or losses thal were reported i level 3 in prior year for
financial assets and financial liabilities that were transferred out of level 3 prior to the end of the year,

o
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
b.  Fair value hierarchy (contimed)

Level 3 financial instrumems are frequently economically bedged with level 1, level 2 and level 3 financial
msnmments.  Accordingly, gains or losses that are reported in level 3 can be partially offset by gains or losses
attribatable to level 1, level 2 or level 3 instrments.  As a result, gains of lozses included in the level 3 rollforward
below do not necessanly represent the overall ompact on the company s results of operations, liquidity or capital

FCERINCCS,

Financial
instruments
awnied, induding
Ninancial
instruments owned Total financial
pledged as assels al
Reconciliation of level 3 Mnancial assels al Tair collateral Drebtors fair value
value: USEm USSm LUSSm
At 1 January 2014 13414 180 13,504
Profit for the year 4,423 - 4423
Purchazes 2028 - 2028
Sales (7713 - (771
Settlements {5,006) 1(3,096)
Transfers into level 3 2,730 - 2730
Transfers out of level 3 (1,599 (180 (1,779
At 31 Decembyer 2014 15,158 - 15158
Oiher creditors
Fimancial and ereditors:
instruments sold, amounts falling  Tedal nancial
Reconcllintion of level 3 bt mok yed Collateralised  due after more liabilities at
Minandal liabilities at Fair purchased financing than one veur Fair valoe
value: LU'SSm USEm UI5Sm USSm
At 1 January 2014 9,194 1,010 2,668 12872
Profit for the year 2330 - (132) 2204
Purclases (5) - 2 (3
Sales 982 - 5954 3936
Settlements (3,180 (BE6) (1,773) (5,839
Transfers into level 3 2,203 - 47 2740
Transfers out of level 3 {1,537 - (585) (2,123)
At 31 December 2014 10,083 124 3,580 13,787

Durmng 2014, level 3 transfers mto financial assets of USS28 billion and financial habihities of USS27 billion
primarily reflect transfers of certain credit derivatives from level 2, principally due to reduced transparency of the
comelation inputs used to value these dervatives as a result of less observable trading activity, and transfers of certain
other credit derivatives from level 2, principally due to unobservable credit spread inputs becoming significant to the
valuation of these instruments.

During 2014, lewel 3 transfers out of financial aszets of USS1.E billion and financial liabilities of USS2.1 billion
prinarily reflect transfers of certain credit derivatives to level 2, principally due to unobservable corelation inputs no
Iomger being significant to the valuation of these derivatives, and the transfers of certain credit derivatives to level 2,
pringcipally due to unobservable credit spread inputs ne longer being significant to the net sk of certain portfolios.
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

b,  Fair value hierarchy (contimued)

Financial
instruments
owned, incuding
financial
instruments owned Todal financial
pledged as assets al
Reconciliation of level 3 financial assets at Fair collateral Debtors fair value
value; USEm USSm USSm
At 1 January 2013 16,075 166 16,241
Profit for the year 904 14 1,010
Purchases 1,601 - 1,601
Sales (1,307) - (1,307)
Settlerments (4.482) - {4482
Transfers into level 3 2463 - 2463
Transfers ot of level 3 (1,932) - (1,932)
At 31 December 2013 13,414 150 13,504
Other creditors
Financial and creditors:
instruments sold, amounts falling ~ Toetal financial
Recondilistion of level 3 bt mot vel Collater alised due alter more liabilities at
Mnancial lahdities at Galr purchased financing than one vear Talr value
value: USEm USEm USSm USSm
AL 1 January 2013 0915 1927 2,390 14,232
Profit fior the vear 1,272 - o9 1,371
Purchases (8) - (3) (11
Sales 581 . 1,654 2275
Settlements (3,136) (917 (1,540) (5,593)
Transfers into level 3 1,937 - s 2252
Transfers md of level 3 (1,367 - (287) {1,654)
At 31 December 2013 9,194 1,010 1,665 12,572

During 2013, level 3 transfers into financial assets of USS2S billion and financial habilines of U823 billion
primarily reflect translers of certain credit derivatives from level 2, principally due to reduced transparency of upfront
creidit points and correlation inputs used to value these derivatives,

Durmg 2013, level 3 transfers out of financial azeets of USE1.9 billion and Gnancial liabilities of USS1.7 billica
primanily reflect transfers of certain credit derivatives to level 2. principally due to unobzervable credit spread and
correlation impuls no longer being significant to the valuation of these dernvatives and unobservable inputs not beang
significant to the net risk of cenain portfolios,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)
t.  Fair value financial instruments valued using technigues that incorporate unobservable nputs

The fair value of fimancial instrumerts may be determined in whole or part uing a valuation technique based on
assumptions that are not supported by prices from observable current market transactions in the same instrument or
based on available chaervable market data and changing these assunptions will change the resultant estimate of fair
value, The potential impact as at 31 December 2004 of using reasonable possible altemative assumptions for the
valuations including significant umobservable inputs has been quantified as approximately USS179 million (2013;
USS113 rmlhon) for favourable chamges and USS146 million (2013: US3127 million) for unfavourable changes,  In
determining reasenably possible altermative unfavourable assumptions a detailed business and position level review
has been performed to identify and quantify instances where polential uncertainty exists.  This has laken into account
the positions" current value as compared to the range of availab le mark et information,

The amounts nod recopnised in the profit and loss account relatmg to the difference between the fair value of financial
instruments held for trading at initial recognition (the transaction price) and the amounts detenmined at initial
recommition using the valustion techniques ("Day 1 P&L") are a= follows:

2014 213
LIS Sm LSS
At 1 January a0 1k
Mew transactions 118 +
Amounts recognised in the profit and loss aceount during the
yeur (62) (58}
At 31 December 136 B0

d.  Fair valie of lnancial instraments nod measiced af fair value

The company has USS123.7 billion (2003 USS124.9 billion) of current financial aszets and USS192.9 billion (2013:
USS169.6 billion) of current financial liabilities that are not measured at far value. Given the short-termn nature of
these instruments, their camrying amounts in the balance sheet are a regsonable approcimation of fair value,

The compary has USE10.8 billion (2013: US512.2 billion) of financial liabilities that are due after more than one year
that are not measured al far value which predominantly relate to long<term intercompany bomowings.  The mterest
rates of these borrowings are variable in nature and approximate prevailing market interest rates for instnaments with
similar terms and charactenstics.  As such, their carving amounts in the balance sheet are a reazonable
approximation of fair value,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
e, Maturity of financal liabilities

The following table details the compamy's cash fows of s financial Habilities by contractual maturity including
mterest that will acorue, except for financial instruments sold, but not yvet purchased.  Financial instruments sold, but
ot vet purchased are classified &2 trading / on demand.  Firancial liabilities, with the exception of those that are held
for tradmg or designated at far value through profit and loss, are disclesed at ther undiscounted cash flows.  The fair
values of financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities designated at fair value through profit and loss
have been disclosed a= this i= consistent with the values used in the hguadity risk management of these instraments.
Liquidity risk on derivatives is mitigated through master netting agrecments and cash collateral arrangements,

31 December 2014

More More More
than one than three than one
vt by bt months year
Trading / Laess  less than but less but less  Grealer
On  than one three than one than five than five
Demand moenth mient hs year Years YEars Total
USEm USSm USSm USSm LS8m USSm  USSm
Financial Habilities:
Financial instruments sold,
bt ned vet purchased 61,404 - . . - = 641404
Collateralised financing 74,056 63 446 7071 10,282 2418 9 157369
Oher creditors 91919 13, 1%6 439 30,068 - = 155622
Creditors: amounts falling due
after more than one year . 2 4 26 9110 8,675 17.817
Total — on-balance-sheet BOT 379 76,644 T.514 60,376 11,528 8771 972212
Contingent and forward
starting resale and scouritics
borrowing agreements - 34.572 - - - - 34,572
Operaling leases - g 16 T4 3gs 20 563
Other 4,001 - - - - - 4,004
Total ~ commitments 4,001 34,580 16 T4 3BE g0 30,136
Total 811,380 111,224 7530 6,450 11.913 B.851 1,011,348
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)

e Maturity of nancial labilities (continued)

31 December 2013

More More Maore
than one than three  than one
manth but months year
Trading / Less  lessthan  bufless  buofless  Greater
On than one three  than one  than Ove  than five
Demand month mant hs Year Yedars Years Total
LSEm USSm USEm LiS5m USEm USsSm  USSm
Financial liabilities:
Financial instruments sold,
but not yet purchased 457,164 - - - - - 45716
Collateralized financing #4335 71,878 13,645 17,708 1,000 Led9 190,211
Oiher creditors 75934 14,126 2331 41,173 - = 133,564
Creditors: amounts falling due
after more than one year - 2 1 8 7,770 8719 16523
Total — on-halance-sheet 617,429 86,6 15,950 28900 8,770 10,368 797,462
Contingent and forward
starting resale and securities
borrowing agrecments 4 0 828 i & - = 30828
Operating leases - L 17 78 40 184 697
Other 2740 ¥ £ # - - 2,740
Total — commitments 2,740 30,837 17 78 409 154 43,268
Total 620,169 125843 15,997 55,9587 9,179 10,552 540,727
I Collateral

The company receives financial instnements {e.g., govermiment and agency obligations, corporate debt securities,
equitiez and convertible debentures) az collateral. primarily in comnection with resale agreements, securitiez
borrowed, derivative transactions and customer margin loans,  The compamy obtains cash and securties as collateral
o an upfiront or contingent basis for dervative instnuments and collsteralised agreements to reduce its credit exposure
to individual counterparties,

In memy cases, the company & pemnitted Lo deliver o repledge hnancial instrienents received as collateral when
entering into repurchase agreements and securities lending agreements, primarily in connection with secured client
financing activity. The company 15 also permitted to deliver or repledge these financial instruments in connection
with other secured financings, collateralizsing derivative transactions and meeting comgsany of customer seiflemment
TeqUIFETTIETILS.

The table below presents financial instruments received as collateral that were available to be delivered, or repledged
and were defivered or repledged by the company,

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

US3m USSm
Collateral available to be delivered or repledged 369,545 3M2ed
Collateral that was delivered or repledged 294,994 279,698
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
I Collateral {continued)

The company also pledges certam financial instruments owned in connection with repurchase agresments, secunities
lending agreements and other secured financings to counterpartics who may or may net have the right to deliver or
repledpe.  Financial mstruments ovwned and pledged to counterparties that have the right to deliver or repledge are
mcluded within “Financial instruments owned pledzed as collateral” in the balance sheet, whereas financial
instruments owned and pledged to counterparties that did not have the right to =ell or pledge are included in “Financial
mnstruments owned® m the balance sheet.  The table below presents information about financial mstriments pledged
to counterpartics by the company.

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Carrying amoundt Carrying amount

USEm LS5m

That had the right te deliver or repledge 24,404 26,264
That did not have the nght to deliver or repledze 17,656 22360

The company has received cash collateral in respect of financial nstnmments owned of USSS7.5 billion (2013
US545.8 billion) and posted cash collateral in respect of financial instruments sald, but not yet purchased of US335.5
billion (2013: US$25.6 billion).

In addition to repurchase agreements and securities lending transactions, the company finds cerfain assets through the
use of other secured financings and pledges fmancial instruments as collateral in these transactions.  These other
secured financings consist of liabilities related to special purpose  entities, transfers of financial assets that are
accounted for as financings rather than sales and other structured financing amangerments.  Other secured financings
include arrangements that are non-recourse.

g Tramslerred assels
Assels conlinued to be recognised in Mull

Durmng the vear, the company transferred certain financial assets where the transfers fuled 1o meet the derecosnition
criteria, as contaned in FES26 (TAS39) “Financial Instruments: Kecognition and Messurament”, and a a resull of
which the conpany continues to recognise these assets in full on the balance sheet.

The cormpany transfers azsels owned to counterpanties in the ordinary course of business to collateralise repurchase
agreements and other securities lending transactions. In these transactions the transferved assels continue Lo be
recomized by the company for sccounting purposes because the transactions require the financial istruments to be
repurchased at maturity of the agreement and the company remaing exposed to the price, credit and interest rate risk of
these ingtrurments.  When the company receives cazh procesds from the transfer of the asset, a fmancial liability s
recognised in respect of the consideration received and recorded within “collateralised financing’, When the
cofmpany receives non-cash collateral (in the form of securities) no liability iz initially recognised.  If collateral
received is subsequently sold, the obligation to return the collateral 15 recognised as a lability within “Financial
instruments sold, but not yet purchased”,

In addition to repurchase agreements and securities lending agreements, the company obtaing finding through the use
of other ammgements that Fail to meet the derecogmition criteria  For exmnple, sales of securities with related
derivatives, such as total return swaps, through which the company retains substantialty all of the risk and reward of
the transferred assets. A financial liability is recognised in such cases for the proceeds received.

Other financial azzets transferred that continue to be recognised on balance sheet for accounting purposes relate o
pledges of securities as collateral, primarily for derivative transactions.  The obligations under such derivatives are
recarded in Financial instruments 2old, but not yet purchaszed’,
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continuwed)

g.  Transferred assets (continued)

The following table presents fimancial aszetz which have been transferred but which remain on bakance sheet for
gccounting purposes.  The camying amount of the associated financial liabilities generally approcimate the camying

aimeumt of the assets transferred.

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

Carrying amount Carrying amount
USSm LSSm

Comrmercial paper, certificates of deposit, time deposits and other
money market instnements 1,047 1,940
Government and agency obligations 11,085 14,518
Mortgage and other asset-backed loans and securities - Q5
Corporate and other debt obligations 6,248 TA26
Equittes and comvertible debeniiures 13.670 28 745
42,060 48,624

Derecognised assets with engeing exposure

The compury has contimuing involvement m the form of dervative transactions and guarantees with certam
non-consolidated structured entities to which the company had transferred financial assets.  These derivatives may be
credit-linked to the asset ransfored and resull in the company retaning specific risks m the transferred asset or
require the company to make payments to the structured entity to compensate losses on the asset if certain contingent
EVETLE OCCUr,

In addition, the company transfers fmancial assets to securitisation vehicles, The company generally receives cash in
exchange for the transforred assets but may have contimung involvement with the transfered assets, including
ownership of beneficial mterestz in the securitisation. The compary may also purchase senior or subordinated
securities issued by securitisation vehicles in connection with secondary market-making activities.

The followang disclosures provide further information about the compamy’s exposure through this contmuing
mvolvernent.  In all cases these retained mterests are cammied at fair value,

3 December 20014 31 December 2013
Carrying Masimum Carrying Maximim
amount  exposure fo loss amount  exposure Lo loss
USEm UsEm UsEm USSm
Finamcial instruments owned:
Derivative instriments 120 1.308 62 1,305
Cash nstniments 64 L) 142 142
Financial instruments sold, bt not
yel purchased:
Desivative instniments {2y (93 (313 (235)
Other liabilities - . . .

Where the company”s contimuing involvement in transfiermed assets is through derivatives or guarantees, the macmum
exposure to less is the notional amounts of the derivative o guarantee.  For refained or purchased interests in
securitised assetz, the compary's risk of loss is limited to the fair value of these interests.

1
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS {continued)
g.  Transferred assets (continued)

For transactions with continuing invelvement, the following table shows information about the gains or lesses,

31 December 20014 31 December 2013
Income / Cumulative Income / Cummdative
(expense) in the income /  {expense) in the imeome /
year (expense) year (expense)
USEm USEm USEm USEm
Financial Instruments owned:
Dierivative nsinuments 6t 144 2 73
Cash istruments 27 11w 63 92
Financial instruments sold, but not
yet purchsed:
Derivative instruments 2 (31) (5 (33
Other liabilities - (1) - (1)

The company accounts for assets pending transfer at fair valoe and therefore does mot typically recogmise significant
gaing or losses upon the transfer of assets,  The company does not have comtinuing involvement that could require the
company lo repurchase derecogmised financml assets.

h.  Hedge accounting

The company designates certain interest rate swaps as fair value hedges.  These interest rate swaps hedge changes in
fair value attributable to the relevant benchmark interest rate (e.g.. London Interbank Offered Rate CLIBOR'),
cllectively converting fixced-rate obligations into floating-rate oblizations.

The company applics a statistical method that utilises regression analyvsis when assessing the effectiveness of its fair
value hedging relationships in achieving offsetting changes m the fair values of the hedging instrument and the risk
being hedeed (e, interest raterisk).  An interest rate swap 15 considered highly effective in offeetiing changes in fair
value attributable to changes in the hedged risk when the regression analysis results in a coefficient of determination
of 8195 or greater and a slope between 309 and 125%

For qualifving fair value hedges, gains or lossez on derivatives and the change in fair value of the hedged item
attribastable to the hedged nisk are included m net revenue.  When a derivative i1s no longer designated a5 a hedge, amy
remaining difference between the camying value and par value of the hedged item is amortised over the remaining life
of the hedged item using the effective interest method,

The table below presents the gams / (lesses) from interest rate denvatives accounted for as hedges, the relsted hedged
borrowings aid the hedge ineffectiveness on these derivatives,

31 December 2014 31 December 2013

LI5S D LISS" (i

Interest rate hedges 84870 (20367)
Hedged borrowings (7T9.931) 18.11%
Hedge inefMectiveness 4,939 (2.248)

The fair value of aszet and liability demvative matrmments designated as hedges were USS188 million and USS10
million, respectively, as at 31 December 2014 (2013 assets of USS113 million and labilities of USS40 million).

1oz
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OTHER ITEMS
Basel 111 Fillar 3 disclosures

The company is included in the consolidated Pillar 3 disclosures of GSGUE, which are required by the ELT Capital
Bequirements Regulation. GSGUK's 2014 Pillar 3 disclosures will be made available, m comjunction with the
publication of its financial staterents, at www, goldmansachs com/disclosures’,

itry-hy- v i

The company 15 included in the consolidated country-by-country reporting disclosures of GSGUK, which are
required by the Capital Requirememts (Country-by-Country  Eeporting) Eegulations 2013, GSGUK's 2014
coundry-by-country  disclosures  will  be  made  available by 31 Decamber 2015 al
www, goldmansachs comidisclosures!,

ULTIMATE AND IMMEDIATE PARENT UNDERTAKINGS

The immediate parent undertaking and the parent company of the smallest groop for which consolidated financial
statements are prepared & Goldman Sachs Group UK Limited, a company incorporated and regiztered in England and
Wales. Copies of Goldiman Sachs Group UK Limuted’s consolidated Nmmcsal statements are available on request
from The Company Secretary, Goldman Sachs Group UK Limited, Peterborough Court, 133 Fleet Street, London,
EC4A 2BB, United Kingdom

The ultimate controlling umdertaking and the parent company of the largest group for which consolidated financial
statements are prepared is The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., a company incorporated m the United States of Amernica
Copies of its consolidated financial staternents, az well az certain regulatory filings, for example Quarterly Keport on
Form 10-0) and Amowal Report on Form 10-K, that provide additional information on G5 Group and its business
activities, can be ebtained from Investor Relationz, 200 West Street. Mew York, NY 10282, United States of America,
G8 Group's principal place of business, or at www.goldnmnsachs.com'shareholders’,
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12 31
2013 2012
3 5,156,688 627,569 5,578,001 678,854
(4,538,515) (552,337)  (4,466,115) (543,526)
4 618,173 75,232 1,111,976 135,327
13 (36,238) (4,410) — —
5 — — 17,512 2,131
6 (305,837) (37,220) (323,339) (39,350)
9 21,468 2,613 21,817 2,655
297,566 36,214 827,966 100,763
11 (128,902) (15,687) (144,006) (17,526)
24 168,664 20,526 683,960 83,238
12 31
2013 2012
168,664 20,526 683,960 83,238
9 (70,358) (8,563) 60,356 7,345
19 8,712 1,060 (13,882) (1,689)
107,018 13,024 730,434 88,894
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©)
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
12 14,339 1,745 16,064 1,955
13 1,198 146 500,880 60,957
15,537 1,891 516,944 62,912
14 489,841,270 59,613,683 561,492,911 68,333,687
14 26,263,531 3,196,272 24,986,812 3,040,895
15 225,854,255 27,486,463 221,527,555 26,959,903
17 70,211,487 8,544,738 70,208,531 8,544,378
16 4,032,081 490,704 13,083,945 1,592,316
816,202,624 99,331,859 891,299,754 108,471,180
14 (457,164,133) (55,636,875)  (520,174,451) (63,305,231)
18 (190,210,848) (23,148,660)  (181,477,383) (22,085,798)
20 (133,349,677) (16,228,656)  (155,199,988) (18,887,839)
(780,724, 658) (95,014,191)  (856,851,822) (104,278,867)
35,477,966 4,317,668 34,447,932 4,192,313
35,493,503 4,319,559 34,964,876 4,255,225
21 (15,331,681) (1,865,866)  (14,968,588) (1,821,677)
22 (17,740) (2,159) (15,305) (1,863)
20,144,082 2,451,535 19,980,983 2,431,686
9,24 156,389 19,033 212,470 25,858
20,300,471 2,470,567 20,193,453 2,457,543
23,24 533,447 64,920 533,447 64,920
24 2,862,936 348,419 2,862,936 348,419
( ) 24 17,286 2,104 17,286 2,104
24 16,886,802 2,055,124 16,779,784 2,042,100
24 20,300,471 2,470,567 20,193,453 2,457,543

2014 22
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( )
a. FRS (1996 )
90
FRS (1996 )
b. FRS
FRS ©
c. FRS 29 (IFRS )
UK 90
FRS 29 (IFRS )
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
1,097,931 838,016
3,715,380 4,092,144
164,946 455,339
178,431 192,592

5,156,688 5,578,091
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( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
3,394 3,248
— 257
436,290 456,806
(440,232) (481,684)
(485) 1,490
5,287 5,042
83,889 93,810
958,829 1,191,140
1,307,476 1,712,669
(147,303) (195,667)
(2,103,502) (2,549,099)
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
— 2,325
— 15,187
— 17,512




EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

ooo0000
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
305,837 323,339
( 2la )
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
4,737 5,533
7 7
4,744 5,540
1,400 1,521
3 —
7 —
2006
(
Sl )2008 /410
(
)
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
674 664
1,388 1,479
98 96
503 493
2,479 2,581
5,142 5,313
320 350
5,462 5,663
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5,555 (2012 5,563 )
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31

3,331,710 3,361,952

373,016 365,340

55,587 55,319

40,429 45,227

3,800,742 3,827,838

1,002 (2012 793
)
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
(@) ()

4.50 4.90

4.00 4.00

3.40 3.30
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2013 12 31 2012 12 31
(@) ( ) (@) ( )
7.1 969.1 7.5 771.6
4.0 404.9 3.5 287.7
2.9 134.7 2.4 207.3
1,508.7 1,266.6
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31 2011 12 31 2010 12 31 2009 12 31
1,508.7 1,266.6 1,059.6 1,053.6 744.9
1,352.3 1,054.1 927.4 889.6 902.1
156.4 212.5 132.2 164.0 (157.2)
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
40.4 45.2
40.4 45.2
49.6 46.5
(71.1) (68.3)
(21.5) (21.8)
18.9 23.4
111.1 57.2
11.0 17.5
) (192.5) (14.3)
« ) (70.4) 60.4
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2013 12 31 2012 12 31 2011 12 31 2010 12 31 2009 12 31
111.1 57.2 (101.1) 14.0 107.0
7.4 4.5 9.5 1.3 14.4

11.0 17.5 28.5 48.6 17.2
0.8 1.7 3.1 5.5 1.9
(70.4) 60.4 (51.9) 88.2 (300.5)
5.2 5.7 5.6 9.9 33.3

( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
1,266.6 1,059.6
71.1 68.3
111.1 57.2
32.3 35.7
-2 -3
36.8 53.1
1,508.7 1,266.6
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
1,054.1 927.4
40.4 45.2
49.6 46.5
192.5 14.3
(11.0) (17.5)
©-2) -3
35.9 45.5
1,352.3 1,054.1
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( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
212.5 132.2
32.3 35.7
(40.4) (45.2)
21.5 21.8
(70.4) 60.4
0.9 7.6
156.4 212.5
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
11.8 9.3
41.9 33.6
71.1 68.3
111.1 57.2
182.2 125.5
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
(101.3) (30.9)
20.2 11.5
(81.1) (19.4)
( RSU )
( 2013 SIP
GSI
2013 (2012 384 )
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(RSV)
2013 SIP GSI RSU
RSU RSU
RSU
RSU
( RSU )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
5,000,853 2,533,081 7,318,780 5,042,532
2,949,686 1,741,276 1,174,295 1,639,205
(35,652) (219,059) (12,531) (488,277)
(5,505, 642) — (7,083,084) —
/C ) 7,171 (19,443) (28,427) (28,559)
1,821,497 (1,821,497) 3,631,820 (3,631,820)
4,237,913 2,214,358 5,000,853 2,533,081
2013 126.38 (2012 87.55 )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31 RSU
11.6 19.1
2014 RSU3.4
1.1 RSU
2019
2010
10
SIP
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2013 12 31 2012 12 31
( ) ( )
10,256,821 90.55 10,875,522 89.89
(41,542) 96.08 (616,250) 78.95
(540) 96.08 (2,451) 78.87
10,214,739 90.53 10,256,821 90.55
10,214,739 90.53 10,256,821 90.55
153.08 (2012
118.82 ) 2013 12 31 2012 12 31
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
75.00-89.99 9,078,709 5.00 9,078,709 6.00
90.00-119.99 — — 42,082 0.92
120.00-134.99 288,720 1.92 288,720 2.92
135.00-194.99 — — — —
195.00-209.99 847,310 3.51 847,310 4.51
10,214,739 10,256,821
11.
a.
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
151,241 243,804
2,275 (30,343)
59,153 50,447
( 1b ) 212,669 263,908
(117,580) (148,721)
38,317 28,523
(4,504) 296
( 19 ) (83,767) (119,902)
128,902 144,006
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2013 12 31 2012 12 31
297,566 827,966
69,184 202,852
30,764 17,547
(10,529) (14,454)
178,608 174,187
(29,230) (86,624)
(1,831) (1,330)
(30,018) (1,339)
3,446 3,412
2,275 (30,343)
212,669 263,908

)

24,628 6,638 31,266
374 1,295 1,669
@ (12) (14)
25,000 7,921 32,921
11,501 3,701 15,202
2,712 682 3,394
@ 12) (14)
14,211 4,371 18,582
10,789 3,550 14,339
13,127 2,937 16,064
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13.
( )
2012 12 31 499,682 1,267 500,949
296,162 — 296,162
(795,844) — (795,844)
2013 12 31 — 1,267 1,267
2012 12 31 — 69 69
2013 12 31 — 69 69
2013 12 31 — 1,198 1,198
2012 12 31 499,682 1,198 500,880
/
(@)
100 2
) 100 250
80 100 * *
*
( ) 595
(296 1,240 (569 )
UK
191
36
2013 11 22
2013 12 18
(U.K.)
100 100
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2013 12 23
(
(U.K.) )
UK
(
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
20,892,333 25,492,194
34,740,279 33,955,630
11,826,957 12,280,613
3,391,803 475,132
70,851,372 72,203,569
236,486,102 298,333,723
77,176,857 104,822,971
68,647,432 65,673,030
57,238,024 40,281,289
5,705,014 5,165,141
445,253,429 514,276,154
516,104,801 586,479,723
489,841,270 561,492,911
26,263,531 24,986,812
516,104,801 586,479,723
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( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
10,325,775 13,506,781
13,775,194 11,813,137
2,663,618 2,881,237
26,764,587 28,201,155
231,757,981 294,450,307
70,760,557 93,313,839
65,413,495 59,839,160
57,063,641 39,724,702
5,403,872 4,645,288
430,399,546 491,973,296
457,164,133 520,174,451
(2012 122,974 )
( FCA ) CASS
2013 12 31 9,868
)
5,316 15,263
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
54,460,372 54,823,699
15,025,954 14,782,022
583,535 492,370
44,250 50,971
22,221 8,858
75,155 50,611
70,211,487 70,208,531
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2013 12 31 7,458 ( )
( 16 ) 3,355 /
4,103
5,316
1,571 /
3,745
/ 180 (2012 165 )
18.
100,994 (2012 106,135 )
19.
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
«C 17 )
2,960 6,630
(31,278) (36,128)
611,853 521,868
583,535 492,370
( )
2012 12 31 492,370
( 1la ) 83,767
8,712
(1,314)

2013 12 31 583,535
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20.
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
70,805 432,324
( a ) 18,960,736 16,292,350
/
( b ) 58,457,370 77,468,307
( b c ) 53,130,793 58,806,627
— 1,444
( 21d ) 1,523,525 1,112,336
234,419 211,513
972,029 875,087
133,349,677 155,199,988
a 6,724 (2012 5,343 )
437 (2012 758 )
6,287 (2012 4,585 )
12,237 (2012 10,949 ) 3,820
(2012 3,430 )
8,417 (2012 7,519 )
b. 2013 12 31 17,326
( 16 ) 13,913 /
3,413
15,263
12,667 / 2,596
c. 37,857 (2012 41,438
)
21.
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
( a ) 6,458,000 9,508,000
( b ) 4,205,847 3,784,372
( c ) 3,549,630 820,878
1,118,204 855,338
( d )
15,331,681 14,968,588
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a 2013 12 31 2012 12 31
GS
6,458 (2012
9,508 ) ( PRA )
PRA
b.
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
967,877 1,478,957
1,990,917 986,079
1,247,053 1,319,336
4,205,847 3,784,372
2,050 (2012 2,266 )
545 (2012 775 )
1,505 (2012 1,491 )
2019 2050
2,156 (2012 1,518 ) 102
(2012 241 ) 2,054
(2012 1,277 )
C.
2013 12 31 2012 26
400 (2012 400 )
2022
d. 20 RSU
22.
( )
2013 15,305
5,000
(2,939)
374

2013 12 31 17,740
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18
FRS 12
23.
2012 12 31 2013 12 31
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
) ( ) ) ( )
533,447,150 533,447 533,447,150 533,447
533,447 533,447
24.
( )
( )
2012 511,123 2,885,260 17,286 16,049,350 19,463,019
— — — 683,960 683,960
— — — 46,474 46,474
_ — _ 384,256 384,256
( 10 )
— — — (384,256) (384,256)
34,189 1,238,002 — — 1,272,191
(11,865) (1,260,326) — — (1,272,191)
2013 533,447 2,862,936 17,286 16,779,784 20,193,453
— — — 168,664 168,664
_ _ — (61,646) (61,646)
— — — 524,935 524,935
( 10 ) ’ ’
_ _ — (524,935) (524,935)
2013 12 31 533,447 2,862,936 17,286 16,886,802 20,300,471
( )
2013 12 31 2012 12 31
16,730,413 16,567,314
( ) 156,389 212,470
16,886,802 16,779,784
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(2012 )
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909 100
221 1,311
1,274 1,290
101,824 99,916
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
{unlimited company)

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

1l 3 o 3
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2002
Note USS'000 LSS 000
MNet revenue 3 5156688 5.578,091
Al nisirative eXpeises (4.538,51%) {4,466,115)
OPERATING PROFIT 4 618,173 1111976
Loss on sale of subsidiary undertaking I3 (36,238) -
Other interest receivable and similar income 5 - 17512
Interest payable and similar charges 4] (305.837) (323,339
Net finance income 9 21,468 21,817
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE
TAXATION 207,566 B27 066
Tax on profil on osdinary activities I (128,902) {148 00005}
PROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES AFTER
TAXATION AND FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR 24 168, 6 GE3, 960

Met revenue and operating profit of the company are derived from continuing operations in the current and prior years.

STATEMENT OF TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

fiar the vear ended 31 Decembaer 3013

Year Ended Year Ended
3 December 2013 31 December 2012
MNote US5'000 US$"000
Profit for the financial year 168,664 GE3,960
Actuarial (loss) / gain relating to the pension scheme 9 (T0.358) 60,356
U.K. deferred tax atinibutable to the actuanal (loss) f gain 19 8712 (13,882)

TOTAL RECOGNISED GAINS AND LOSSES

RELATING TO THE FINANCIAL YEAR AND

107,018 Ti0434

SINCE LAST FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The notes on pages 58 1o 34 form an integral part of these financial statements.
Independent auditors’ report — page 54,

56
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

BALANCE SHEET

as at 31 r 2013
31 December 20013 31 December 2012
Maote LISS" (M LISSM 000
FIXED ASSETS
Tangible assels 12 14,334 16,0k
Invesiments 13 1,198 500,880
15,537 516,944
CURRENT ASSETS
Financial instruments owned 14 489 841,270 61492011
Financial instruments owned pledged as collateral 14 26,263,531 24,986,812
Collateralised agreements 15 225,854,255 221,527,555
Debiors 17 70,211,487 TO208,531
Cash at bank and in hand 16 4,032,081 13,083,945
H16,202,624 B91.299.754
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR
Financial instruments sold, but not yet purchased 14 (457,164,133) (520,174,451)
Collateralised fimancing 18 (190, 210,848) [181,.477,383)
Oither creditors 20 (133.349.677) (155,195 9858)
(TR0,724,658) (856,851,822)
NET CURRENT ASSETS 35477966 34447932
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 35,493,503 34,964,876
CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN
ONE YEAR 21 (15,331,681} (14,968,588
FROVISIONS FOR LIABILITIES 22 (17,7400 (15,305)
NET ASSETS EXCLUDING PENSION SURPLUS 20,144,082 19,980,983
Pension surplus 0,24 156,259 212,470
NET ASSETS INCLUDING PENSION SURPLUS 20,300.471 20,193,453
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called up share capital . 23,24 533,447 533,447
Share premium account 24 2862936 2862930
Capital reserve (non-distributable) 24 17,286 17,286
Profit and loss account 24 16,886,802 16,779,784
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS® FUNDS 24 20,300,471 20,193,453

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 22 April 2004 and signed on its behalf by:

w- . (/,‘n-u-_

R. A Vince
Director

The notes on pages 58 to 84 form an integral part of these financial staements.
Independent anditors” report — page 54.
Company aumber: 02263051

57
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

L STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013
L ACCOUNTING POLICIES
a.  Accounting convention

The financial statements have been prepared on the going concern basis, under the historical cost comvention
{modificd as explained in notes Th, In, 1o and Ip), and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006 and
applicable accounting standards in the United Kingdom. The principal accounting policies are set out below
and have been applicd consistently throughout the year.

k. Consolidation

The company is a subsidiary undenaking of a company incorporsed in Great Britain and has elected not 1o
prepare consolidaed financial statements as perminied by section 402 of the Companies Act 2006

. Revenue recognition

Net revenue has been disclosed instead of turnover as this more meaningfully reflects the nature and results of
the company's activities. Met revenue, which is afier charging related expenses, includes the net profit arising
from transactions in securities, foreign exchange and other financial instruments, and fees and commissions
carned.  Related expenses include trading interest and dividends payable less irading interest and dividends

receivable.
Financial aseis and liahilities held for trading

Financial assets and liabalities held for trading are recognised an fair value with realised and vnrealised gans and
losses ax well as associated interest and dividend income and expenses included in net revenue.  Financial
assens are marked 1o bid prices and Anancial liabialages are marked w offer prices,  Fair value measurements do
ned include rransacnion costs,

Investment Banking

Fees from financial advisory engagements and underwriting revenues are recognized in profit and loss when the
relevant parties are coniraciually bound and as coniract activity progresses unless the right 1o consideration does
not arise until the occurrence of a critical event, in which case revenue is no recognised until that event has
occurred.

Expenses associated with such engagements are deferred until the related revenue is recogmised or the
engagement is otherwise concluded, Expenses associated with financial advisory engagements are recognised
in administrative expenses, nel of clien reimbursements.  Underwriting revenues are presented net of related
EXPEnSEs,

Investment Management

Management fees are recognised on an acerual bagis and are generally caleulated as a percentage of a fund or a
separately managed account’s average net asset value and are recognised over the period that the related service
is provided.

Incentive fees are calculated as a percentage of a fund’s return or a percentage of a fund'’s excess retum above a

specified benchmark or other performance target.  Incentive fees are recognised only when all matenal
contingencies have been resolved.

Commissions and Fees

Revenue from commissions and fees from executing and clearing client transactions on stock, options and
futures markets is recognised in net revenue on the day the rade is executed,

58
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
d.  Operating leases

The company has entered imo operating lease arrangements where the company ac1s as the lessee.  Leased
assels are nol recognised on the balance sheet,  Costs in respect of operating leases, including any incentives
granted by the lessor, are charged on a straight-line basis over the lease term and included within administrative
expenses in the profit and loss account,

e Short-term emplovee benefits

Short-term employee benefits, such as wages and salaries, are measured on an undiscounted basis and accrued as
an expense over the period in which the emploves renders the service to the company.  Provision is made for
discretionary year end compensation whether to be paid in cash or share-based awards where, as a resull of
company policy and past practice, a constructive obligation exists at the balance sheet date.

. Share-based paymenis

Group Inc. isswes awards in the form of resiricted stock units ("RSUs") and stock options to the company’s
employees for services rendered to the company. The original cost of share-based transactions with employees
is measured based on the grani-date fair valoe of the award.  Share-based awards that do not require future
service (i, vested awards, including awards granted 1o retirement eligible employees) are expensed
immediately.  Share-based awards that require fuwlure service are amortised over the relevant service period.
Expected forfeiures are included in determining share-based employee compensation expense.

Group Inc. settles equity awards through the delivery of its ordinary shares.  Group Inc. pays cash dividend
equivalents on outstanding RSUs.  The company has also entered into a chargeback agreement with Group Ine.
under which it is committed to pay to Group Inc. the market value o grant date as well as subsequent movements
in fair value of those awards 1o Group Inc. at the time of delivery to its emplovees.

. Foreign currencies

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are translated inte ULS, dollars at eates of exchange ruling on the
cdate the wansaction occurred.  Monetary assets and labilines denominated in foreign currencies are translated
inte U8, dollars at rmes of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date.  Foreign exchange gains and bosses are
recognised in operating profi,

h. Pension costs

The company is a sponsor of a defined coniribution pension plan and a hybnd pension plan for the benefit of
certain employees. The hybrid pension plan has both a defined benefit section ("the Plan™) and a defined
contribution section.  These are accounted for as follows:

+  Forthe defined comnbunion pension plan and the defined contribution section of the hybrid pension plan, the
amounl charged 1o operaling profit in respect of pension ¢osts 13 the contributions pavable for the vear,
Differences between contributions pavable for the vear and contnbutions acually paid are shown as gither
aceruals or prepavments on the balance sheet,

59
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

MNOTE THE FINANCIAL STATEME!? - 31 DECEMBER 2013
1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
h. Pension cost (continued)

#  Forihe Plan, the amounts charged to operating profit are the currenl service costs, any past service costs and
any gains or losses on settlements and cuntailments,  They are included as par of staff costs,  The interest
cost and expected return on assets are shown as a pel amount within nel inance income,  Acluanial gains
and losses are recognised immediately in the stsement of 1otal recognised gains and losses, The Plan s
funded, with the assets of the scheme held separately from those of the company, | separale
trusteg-administered funds,  Plan assets are measured a fair value and Plan liabilines are measured on an
actuarial bazis wsing the projected unit method and discounted af a rate equivalent 1o the current rate of return
on a high-quality corporate bond of equivalent carrency and tenm o the scheme liabilites,  Full actuaral
valuations are obtained al least trienmially and updated al cach balance sheet dite.  Any surplus or deficit of
Plan assels over Plan habilities is recognised on the balance sheet as an asset (surplus) or lability (deficit).

i Dividends

Final equity dividends ({including dividends payable on preference shares accounted for as equity) are
recognised in the year that they are approved by the directors.  Interim equity dividends are recognised in the
year that they are paid.  Dividends are debited directly to equity.

J- Tangible fixed asseis
Tangible fixed asseis are stated a1t cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for any impairment.

Depreciation is included in administrative expenses and 15 provided on a straight-line basis over the following
estimated useful lives:

— Years
Fixtures, fittings and equipment 3-7

Leaschold improvements are depreciated over the shomer of the useful economic life of the asset or the
remaining life of the lease when the asset is brought into use,  Depreciation policies are reviewed on an annual
hasis,

k. Fixed asset investments

Fixed asset investments are stated at cost or amortised cost, as applicable, less provision for any impairment.
Amortisation is included in administrative expenses.

L Cash at bank and in hand

Cash at bank and in hand includes cash in hand, deposits held at call with banks, other short-term highly ligued
investments with ariginal maturities of three months or less, which the company controls and has access 1o future
economic benefit from,

m. Offsetting financial assets and liabilities
Fimancial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet where there is:
+  currently a legally enforceable right 1o set off the recognised amounts; and
intent 1o settle on a net basis or to realise the asset and setile the lability simultaneously.

Where these conditions are not met, financial assets and liabilitics are presented on a gross basis on the balance
shest.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 20013

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
n. Financial instruments

Financial instruments owned and financial instruments sobd, but not yet purchased are classified as held for
trading and recorded at fair value.  The directors are of the opinion that it would not be appropriate o classily
them as current asset investments or (o provide an analysis of such securitics between those listed and unlisted,

Non-trading financial instruments primarily comprise long-term subordinated debt and loan notes issued. They
are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently measwred at amortised cost, Finance costs, including
discounts allowed on issue, are charged 1o the profit and loss account and recognised using the effective interest
method.

0. Fair value measurements

Financial assets and Labilities held for trading are recorded at fair value. The fair value of a financial
instrument 15 the ameunt that would be received 1o sell an asset or paid 1o transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between markel participants ot the measurement date, L.e. the exit price.  Financial assets are marked
o bid prices and financial liabilities are marked 1o offer prices. Fair value measurements do not include
transaction costs,  Fair value gains or losses are included in net revenue.  Certain financial assets and financial
liabilities are measured as a portfolio (i.c. based on its net exposure to market and / or credit risks).

The best evidence of fair value is a quoted price in an active market, If quoted prices in active markets are nol
available, fair value is determined by reference to prices for similar instrements, quoled prices or recenl
transactions in less active markeis, or internally developed models that primanly wse market-based or
independently sourced parameters as inpuis including, but not limited 1o, interest rates, volatilities, equity or
debt prices, foreign exchange rates, commodities prices, credit spreads and funding spreads (i.e. the spread, or
difference, beiween ihe interest rate at which a borrewer could finance a given financial instrument relative 1o a
benchmark interest rate),

UK., GAAP has a three-level fair value hicrarchy for disclosure of fair value measurements. The fair value
higrarchy priontises inputs o the valuation techmiques used to measure fair value, giving the highest priority to
level | inputs and the lowest prionity to Jevel 3 inputs. A financial instrument’s level in the fair value hierarchy
is based on the lowest level of input that is significant to its fair value measurement.  The fair value hicrarchy is
as follows:

Level 1. Inputs are unadjusted quoted prices in active markets to which the firm had access at the measurement
date for identical, unrestricted assets or liabilities.

Level 2. Inputs 1o valuation technigues are observable, either directly or indirecaly.

Level 3, One or more inputs to valuation technigues are significant and unobservable.

Certain level 2 and level 3 financial assets and financial liabilities may require appropriate valuation adjusiments
that a market participant would require to arrive at fair value for factors such as counterpanty and GS Group's

credit quality, funding risk, transfer restrictions, illiquidity and bid [ offer spreads.  Valuation adjusimems are
generally based on market evidence.

Cash instrumdnts
Cash instruments inglude government and agency obligations, bank loans, corporate debt securitics, cquitics and

convertible debentures, and other non-derivative financial instruments owned and financial instruments sold, but
not yet purchased.  Valuation techniques and significant inputs for cach level of the fair value hicrarchy include:

*  Level I cash instruments that are valued using quoted prices for identical unrestricted instruments in active
markeis.

6l
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

1. ACCDUNTING POLICIES (continued)
0. Fair value measurements (continued)

*  Level 2 cash instruments that are valued by verifving to quoted prices, recent trading activity for identical or
similar instruments, broker or dealer quotations or allersative pricing sources with reasonable levels of price
transparency, Consideration is given to the aature of the quotatons (e.g. indicative or firm) and the
relationship of recent market activity 1o tee prices provided from alternative pricing sources.

Valuation sdjustments are typically made to level 2 cash instroments (1) if the cash instrument is subject o
transfer restrictions and £ or () for other premiwms and discounts that a market participant would regquire o
arrive al fair value,  Valuation adjustments are generally based on markel evidence,

+  Level 3 cash instruments that have one or more significant valuation inputs that are not observable.  Absent
evidence o the contrary, level 3 cash instrements are initially valeed ot trapsaction price, which is
considered 1o be the best initial estimate of fair value.  Subsequently, the company uses other methodologies
Lo dhetermine (air value, which vary based on the type of instrument.  Valuation inputs and assumptions ane
changed when comoborated by substantive observable evidence, including values realised on sales of
financial assets.

1Y

Denvatives may be wraded on an exchange (‘exchange-traded’) or they may be privately negotiated contracts,
which are usually referred 10 as OTC derivatives. Certain of the company's OTC derivatives are cleared and
settbed through central clearing counterparties {OTC-cleared"), while others are bilateral contracts between two
counterparties (‘bilateral OTC"),  Valuation wechniques and significant inpuis for each level of the fair value
hierarchy include:

+  Level | denvatives include shori-term coniracts for future delivery of securities when the underlying
seourity is a level 1 instrument, and exchange-traded derivatives if they are actively traded and are valued at
their quoted market price.

*  Level 2 derivatives include OTC derivatives for which all significant valuation inputs are corroborated by
market evidence and exchange-traded derivatives that are not actively waded and £ or that are valued using
madels that calibrate w market-clearing levels of OTC derivatives. In evaluating the significance of a
valwation input, the company considers, among other Factors, a portfolio’s net Fisk exposuse ot inpit,

The selection of a particular model 1o value an OTC derivative depends on the contracteal erms of and
specific risks inherent in the instrument, as well as the availability of pricing information in the market.  For
derivatives that trade in liquid markets, model selection does not involve significant management judgement
because outputs of models can be calibrated to market-clearing levels.

Waluation models require a variety of inpuis, such as contraciual terms, market prices, yield curves, discount
rates (including those derived from interest rates on collateral received and posted as specified in credit
support agreements for collateralised derivatives), credit curves, measures of volatility, prepayment rates,
loss severity rates and correlations of such inpws,  Significant inputs (o the valuations of level 2 derivatives
can be verified 10 marker wransactions, broker or dealer quotations or other aliernative pricing sources with
reasonable levels of price transparency, Consideration is given to the nature of the quotations (e.g.
indicative or firm) and the relationship of recent market activity to the prices provided from aliernative
PrCING SOURCes,

4
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

.

Fair value measurements {continued)

+  Level 3 denvatives are valued using models which utilise observable level 1 and f or level 2 inputs, as well as
unobservable level 3 inputs.  Unobservable inputs include certain correlations as well as credit spreads,
equity volatility inputs, commaodity prices and commodity volatilities.

Subsequent to the initial valuation of a level 3 derivative, the company updates the level 1 and level 2 inputs
to reflect observable market changes, Level 3 inputs are changed when corroborated by evidence such as
similar market transactions, third-party pricing services and / or broker or dealer quotations or other
empirical market data,  In circumstances where the company cannot verify the model value by reference 1o
markel ransactions, it is possible that a different valuation model could produce a materially differcnt
estimate of fair value,

Where there 15 a difference between the inttial ransaction price and the fair value calculmed by internal models,
a gaan or loss shall be recognised after imtial recognition only o the extent that it anses from a change in a faclar
(incleding time) that market participants would consider in seting a price.

Collateralised agreements and financing

Collateralised agreemenis (securitics purchased under agreements 1o resell and deposits placed as collateral for
stock borrowed) and collateralised financing (securities sold under agreements 1o repurchase and deposits
received as collateral for siock loans) are generally carried at fair value under the fair value option as they are
managed and performance evaluated on a fair valee basis, The collateral can be in the form of cash or
securities, Cash collateral s recognised / derecognised when received / paid.  Collateral posted by ihe
company in the form of securities is not derccognised from the balance sheet, whilst collateral received in the
form of securities is not recognised on the balance sheer. [T collateral received is subsequently sold, the
obligation to return the collateral and the cash received are recognised on balance sheet,

Deferred taxation

Deferred tax is recognised in respect of all timing differences that have originated, but not reversed at the
balance sheet date, where iransactions or events have occurred at that date that will result in an ebligation to pay
more tax or a right to pay less tax in the future with the following exceptions:

+ deferred tax assels are recognised only to the extent that the directors consider that it is more likely than not
that there will be suitable taxable profits from which the future reversal of the underlying timing differences
can be deducted,

+  deferred tax is measured on an undiscounted basis a1 the tax rates that are expected 1w apply in the periods in
which iming differences reverse, based on tax rates and laws enacted or substantively enacted at the balance
sheet date.

Deferred tax is recognised in the profit and loss account or directly in the statement of total recognised gains and
losses according o where the associated gain or loss, to which the deferred tax is atiributable, is recognised.

Financial liabilitics and equity

Financial habilities and equity instruments are classified according 1o the substance af the contractual
arrangements.  An equily investment is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the ey
after deducting all habilities.  Instruments are evaluated to determine if they contain both hability and equity
components.  The initial carrying amount of a compound financial instrument is allocated first o the habiliy
component, measured at fair value, and the equity is assigned the residual amount.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES {continued)
5. Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised in the financial statements when it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will he required to settle a present (legal or constructive) obligation, which has arisen as a result of past events,
and for which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. Legal obligations that may arise

as a result of proposed new laws are recognised as obligations only when the legislation is virtally certain to be
cnacted as drafied.

Contingent liabilities are;

+  possible obligations that anse from past events whose existence will be confirmed only by the occurrence, or
non-occurrence, of one or more uncertain future events owside the control of the company; or

»  present obligations that have ansen from past events but which are not recognised because either an outflow
of economic benefits 1s not probable or the amount of the obligations cannet be reliably measured.

Contingent labilities are not recognised in the financial statements.  However, disclosure is made unless the
probability of setilement is remote.

2 REPORTING AND DISCLOSURE EXEMPTIONS
a.  FRSI (Revised 1996) “Cash Flow Statements®

The company is a greater than 90% subsidiary of Group Inc. whose consolidated financial statements include the
company and are publicly available and is. therefore, exempt from preparing a cash flow statement as regquired
by FRS1 {Revised 1996) “Cash Flow Satements’.

h. FRSE “Related Party Disclosures”

The company is a wholly-owned subsidiary of Group Inc. whose consolidated financial staiements include ihe
company and are publicly available. As a resull, under the terms of paragraph 3{c) of FRSS, "Related Party
Disclosures’, the company is exempi from disclosing iransactions with companies also wholly owned within
The Goldman Sachs Grouwp, Inc,

c. FRS29 (IFRST) ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures®

The company i a greater than 9% subsidiary of Goldman Sachs Group UK Limited, whose consolidated
financial statements include the company and are publicly available and is, therefore, exempt from the
disclosures required by FR52%9 (IFRST), ‘Financial Instruments: Disclosures”.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

NET REVENLUE

The company s net revenue is categorised into the following business segments:

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2013 3 December 2002
LS5 000 LISS 00y
Investment Banking 1,047 931 838016
Institutional Client Services 3715380 4,092, 144
Investing & Lending 164,946 455,339
Investment Management 178,431 192,592
5,156,088 5,578,091

In addition to transactions entered into with third parties, the company also enters into ransactions with affiliates in
the normal course of business as part of market-making and general operations.  Revenues are allocated 1o, and
received from, such affiliates for these transactions.

Investment Banking
Investment Banking is comprised of:

Financial Advisory. Includes strategic advisory engagements with respect to mergers and acquisitions, divestitures,
corporate defence activities, risk management, restructurings and spin-offs, and derivative transactions directly
related 1o these chient advisory engagements.

Underwriting. Includes equity and debt underwriting of public offerings and private placements across a wide-range
of securities and other financial instruments, and derivative ransactions directly related o these client underwriting
activities,

Institutional Client Services
Institutional Client Services 13 comprised of:

Fixed Income, Corrency and Commodities Client Execution. Includes client execution activities related 1o making
markets in interest rate products, credit products, mortgages, currencies and commodities.

The company generates markei-making revenues in these activities in three ways:

= In large, highly liquid markets, the company executes o high volume of ransactions for chients for modest
spreads and fees;

= In less hquid markets, the company execules transactions for clients for spreads and fees that are generally
somewhat larger: and

- The company also structures and execules transactions involving customised of tailor-made produects that
address clients” risk exposures, investment objectives or other complex needs,

Equities. Includes client execution activities related 10 making markeis in equity products and commissions and fees
from executing and clearing institutional client ransactions on major stock, options and futures exchanges worldwide,
as well as over-the-counter ransactions. Equities also includes the securities services business, which provides
financing, securities lending and other prime brokerage services to institutional chients, including hedge funds, mutwal
funds, pension funds and foundations, and generates revenues primarily in the form of interest rate spreads or fees.

63
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

; y - 3
NET REVENUE (continued)

Investing & Lending

Investing & Lending includes direct investments made by the company and revenues associated with providing
investing services to funds managed by GS Group.

Investment Management
Investment Management offers invesiment management and wealth advisory services, including porifolio

management and financial counselling. and brokerage and other transaction services (o high-net-wonth individuals and
families,

Geographical Analysis
Duse to the highly integrated nature of international financial markets, the directors consider that the company operates

i a single global market.  As a result, no disclosure of segmental information relating o the geographical origin of
results has been provided.

OPERATING PROFIT

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
LSS 000 LIS57 000

Operating profit is stated after charging / (crediting):
Deepreciation of angible fixed assens (see noe 12) 3394 3,248
Loss on disposal of tangible Nxed assels - 257
Management fees charged by group underiakings (see note a) 436,290 456,806
Management fees charged 1o group underakings (see note a) {440,232) (481,684)
Foreign exchange (gain) / loss on long-term debd (485) 1,490
Auditors’ remuneration for audit services (see note b) 5.287 5,042
Operating lease rentals: = land and buildings 83,889 93,810
Trading imerest pavable: = group underakings (see node ¢) 958,829 1,191,140
= other (3¢ nole ¢) 1307476 1,712,669
Trading imeresy receivable; = group undertakings (see note d} (147,303) (195.667)
= other (see note d) (2,103,502) (2,549,009

a,  Admimstrative expenses includes management fees charged by group undertakings. and management fees
charged 1o group undertakings, relating to operational and administrative support and management services
provided to affiliates and received from affilistes, respectively.

b. The company has taken the exemption not o disclose fees payable to the auditor and its associates for non-audit
services as the conselidated financial statements of Goldman Sachs Group UK Limited are required to disclose
such information on a consolidated basis,

¢ Trading mnterest payable primarily includes imterest and dividends on cash instruments sold, but not el
purchased, and interest on collmeralised financing and other borrowings reponied within creditors, with the
exception of interest on long-term subordinated loans, which is presented in interest payable and similar charges
(see note 6 1o the financial statements).

d. Trading interest receivable primarily includes interest and dividends on cash instruments owned and interest on
collateralised agrecments.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

OTHER INTEREST RECEIVARLE AND SIMILAR INCOME

Year Ended Year Ended
3 December 2003 31 December 20012
LSS 000 LISS 000
Drividend income - 2,325
Oiher interest reccivable - 15,187
- 17,512
INTEREST PAYARLE AND SIMILAR CHARGES
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2003 31 December 2012
USS°000 LISS 000
Payabile to group undertakings 305,837 323,339

Inierest payable and similar charges payable o group underiakings arise on long-term subordinated loans (see note
2lak

DIRECTORS" EMOLUMENTS

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

LS%"000 LSS 000
Agpregale emolumens 4,737 5,533
Company pension contributions 1 money purchase schemies 7 7
4,744 5,540

LISS" 001 UIS5000

Highest paid director:
Aggregate emoluments and benefits 1,400 1.521
Company pension contributions to money purchase schemes 3 -
1

Accrued annual pension at end of year

In sccordance with the Companies Act 2006, directors” emoluments above represent the proporion of total
emaluments paid or payable in respect of qualifying services only.  This tetal only includes the value of cash and
benefits in kind, and does nol include the value of equity awards in accordance with the provisions of Schedule 5 of 51
2008 £ 410, Directors also receive emoluments for non-qualifying services which are not required (o be disclosed.

One director is a member of a defined contribution pension plan and one director is a member of the hybrid pension
plan (including the defined benefit section and defined contribution section).  Five directors, including the highest
paid director, have been granted shares in respect of long-term incentive schemes during the year. Mone of the
directors, including the highest paid director, have exercised options dusing the year,

67
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL

{unlimited company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

STAFF COSTS

The average number of staff (employees incliding directors, and consultants and wemporary staff) s analysed below;

Employees including directors
Imvestment Banking
Institutional Client Services
Investing & Lending

Investment Management
Support Functions

Consultants and temporary stafl

Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
MNumber Mumber

674 G

1,388 1,479

kH] U

5003 493

2,479 2,581

5,142 5,313

320 350

5462 5,663

The company has the use of a number of individuals who are employed by affiliated entities and seconded to the

company.

These seconded individuals are included in the disclosure of headcount and related staff costs.

Consuliants and temporary staff costs are included in total direct costs of employment, below.  Total headeount as at

31 December 2013 was 5,555 (2012: 5,563).

The employment costs incurred by the company, including ihose relating to direciors, were:

Aggregale gross wages and salaries
Employer's Mational Insurance Comributions
Pension costs, employer contributions 1o the:

Defined comrnibution plan and defined comribution section
of the hybrid pension plan

Defined benefit section of the hybrid pension plan

Total direct costs of employment

Year Ended Year Ended
3 December 2013 31 December 20012
LSS 000 LSS 000
1331.710 13601952
373016 365,340
55,587 55319
40,429 45227
3800742 3,827 838

Total direct costs of employment include a charge of LSS 1,002 million {2002: charge of US$793 million) relating 1o

the mark-to-market of share-based compensation.
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
{unlimited company)

NTS - 13
PENSION ARRANGEMENTS
The company sponsors an open pension plan with a hybrid strecture, having both a defined benefin section (“the Plan”)
and a defined comtribution section.  From 1 March 2008, this hybrd pension plan was closed o emplovees whose

emplovment commenced after this date and was replaced by a defined contribution plan,

A full sctwarial valuation of the Plan was carried out by a qualified independent actuary as at 31 December 2012 using
the projected unit funding method and updated to 31 December 2013,

The major financial assumptions used by the actuary underlying the funding of the Plan which had the most significant
effect on the pension cost are set out below:

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 2003 31 December 2002

% per annunt T per anmunt

Diseount rate 4,50 4,90

Rate of increase in salaries 4.00 4.00

Rate of increase in pensions in payment

(post-30 November 1996 accrual) 3.40 330
Rate of increase in pensions in deferment

(post-30 November 1996 accrual) 2.60 240

Rate of price inflation 3.60 3.3

In line with market practice the mortality assumptions have been updated 1o be set based on the ‘51 series all pensioner
light" base table with allowance for future improvements from 2002 onwards in line with the CMI 2012 core
projections with a long term rate of improvement of 1% per anment.

Based on the actuanial review of the Plan, the directors have revised the following assumption as they believe it better
reflects the future development of Plan liabilities:

= The difference between the Retail Prices Index ("RPI') and Consumer Prices Index (*CPI') has been increased
from 0L.9% per anmem o 10% per annwm since 31 December 2002, This change in assumption decreased Plan
liahilities by US$14 million,

The assets in the Plan attributable to the company and the expected rates of return were:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Expected Market Expecied Market
rate of return value  rate of returm value
S per ainnm USSm e per anmum USSm
Equities T.1 9691 1.5 7716
Bonds 4,0 404.% 15 287.7
Cash and reinvested cash 29 134.7 24 207.3
Total market value of assets 1.508.7 1,266.6
[
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

PENSION ARRANGEMENTS (confinued)

Development of the balance sheet:
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

013 2012 2011 2010 20069
US%5m LSSm US3m US%m LUSSm
Market value of Plan assets 1,508.7 1,266.6 10596 10536 T44.9
Actuarial value of Plan liabilities 1,352.3 1,054.1 Q2t.4 E89.6 GOl
Surplus / (deficit) in the Plan and
pension asset / (liability )
recognised in the balance sheet
before deferred taxation 156.4 2125 132.2 164.0 {157.2)
The defined benefit cost was formed of the following components:
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2002
USEm US3m
Amalysis of amounis charged to operating profit:

Current service cosl 4.4 452
Total charged o operating profit 40.4 452
Analysis of the amount credited to net finance income:

Interest on Plan liabilities 49.6 46.5

Expected return on assets in the Plan (711} (68.3)
Total eredited to net finance income (21.5) (21.8)
Total charged to profit and loss before tax 18.9 234
Amnalysis of amounts recognised in the statement of total

recognised gains and losses:

Actual less expected gain on assets 1.1 572

Experience gain on liabilities 11.0 17.5

Lass on change in assumpions

(fimancial and demographicy (192.5) (14.3)
Total (lossh f gain recognised in the statement of total
recognised gains and losses before tax (T0.4) 6.4

0
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

PENSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

History of experience gains and losses are as follows:

31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009
Actual less expected gain /
{loss) on Plan asseis:
Amount (U55m) 111.1 572 (101,13 140 107.0
% of Plan assets sl end of
the year T4% 4.5% 05% 1.3% 14.4%
Experience gain on Plan
liabilities:
Amount {US3m) 1.0 17.5 285 48.6 17.2
&% of Plan liabilities at end
of the year 0E% 1.7% 3% 55% 1.99%
Total actuarial (loss) f
gain recognised in
statement of total
recognised gains and
losses:
Amount (US5m) (T0.4) 60,4 (51.9) 882 (300.5)
% of Plan liabilities at end
of the year 5.2% 57% 5.6% 9.9% 33.3%
Analysis of the movement in Plan assets during the year:
Year Ended Year Ended
3 December 2013 31 December 20012
USsm LIS$m
Plan assets at the start of the year 1,266.6 1,055 6
Expected return on Plan assets 711 683
Actual less expected gain on assets 111.1 57.2
Contributions paid — Employer 323 357
Benefits paid {9.2) {7.3)
Foreign exchange gains on translation of Plan asscts 368 531
Plan assets at the end of the year 1.508.7 1,266.6
Analysis of the movement in plan liabilitics during the year:
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2003 31 December 2002
US%m US%m
Plan liabilitics at the start of the year 1.054.1 9274
Current service cost 404 452
Imerest on Plan liabilities 49.6 46.5
Loss on change in assumptions 1925 14.3
Experience gain on liabilitics (1.0} (17.5)
Benefits paid (9.2) (7.3)
Foreign exchange losses on translation of Plan liabilities 159 455
Plan liabilities at the end of the year 1,352.3 1,054.1
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013
PENSION ARRANGEMENTS (continued)

Analysis of the movement in surplus in the Plan during the year:

Year Ended Year Ended
3 December 2003 31 December 20012
USSm LS5m
Surplus in the Plan at the start of the year 2125 1322
Contributions pard — Employer 323 157
Current service cosl (40.4) (45.2)
Net finance income 215 218
Actuarial (lossyf gain (T0.4) 0.4
Forgign exchange gains on translation of surplus 09 7.6
Surplus in the Plan at the end of the vear 156.4 2125
Additional disclosures:
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2012
US$m USSm
Expected future benelil payments for the vear 1o
31 December 2004 7 31 December 2013 1.3 9.3
Expected contnbutions for the year 1o
31 December 2004 7 31 December 2003 - Employer 41.9 316
Actual return on Plan assets during the vear ended
31 December 20013 f 31 December 2012
Expected return on Plan assets 711 68.3
Actual less expected gain on assels 111.1 §7.2
Actual return on Plan assets 182.2 125.5

Cuomulative amounts recognised in the statement of total recognised gains and losses since the adoption of

FRES17 Retirement Bemefits:

31 December 2013

31 December 2012

US%m USSm

Actuarial loss reliting 1o the pension scheme (101.3) (30.9)

ULE. deferred tax atnbutable to the actuanal loss M2 115
Met cumulative amount recognised in the statement of total

recagnised gains and losses (81.1) (19.4)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS
Stock incentive plan

Group Inc., spensors a stock incentive plan, The Goldman Sachs Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan (200 3)
(“the 2003 SIP'), which provides for, amongst others, granis of incentive stock options and restricied siock unils
{"RSLUs"),

GSI recorded share-based compensation in respect of the amortisation of granted equity awards, net of forfeitures, of
USE525 mullion for 2013 (2012: USS384 million). The corresponding credit to equity has been transferred o
labilities as a result of the erms of the imercompany agreements with Group Inc,

Restricted stock units (*RSUs")

The ultimate parent company grants BSUs 1o GSI's employees under the 2013 SIP, which are valued based on the
closing price of the underlying shares on the date of grant afier taking into account a liquidity discount for any
applicable post-vesting transfer restrictions.  REUs generally vest and underlying shares of commaon stock deliver as
outlined in the applicable RSU agreements.  Employee-R5U agreements generally provide that vesting is accelerated
in certain circumstances, such as on retirement, death, disability and conflicted employment.  Delivery of the
underlying shares of common stock is conditioned on the grantees satisfying certain vesting and other requirements
outlined in the award agreemenis. The activity related 10 these RSUs is set forih below:

3 December 2013 31 December 2012
M. of R5Us No. of RSUs

Mo future Future No future Future
service sErvice service SETVICE
requirement  requirement requirement  requirement

Oustanding at the beginning of the year 5,000,853 2533081 TI1R8.T80 5042532
Granted 2940686 1,741.276 1,174,295 1,630,205
Forfeited (35,652) (219,059) (12,531} (488,277)
Delivered (5.505,642) - (7.083,084) -
Transferred in / (out) 771 (19.443) (28,427) (28,559
Yested 1,821,497 (1,821.497) 3,631,820 (3,631 ,820)
Ouistanding at the end of the year 4,237,913 2,214,358 5,000,553 2,533,081

The weighted average grant-date fair value of the cquity instruments granted during 2013 was US3126.38 (20012
US387.55). The fair value of the R5Us granted duning the year ended 31 December 2003 and the year ended 31
December 2012 includes a liquidity discount of 11.6% and 19.1%, respectively, to reflect post-vesting transfer
restrictions of up to 4 years.

Im the first quarter of 2014, Group Inc, granted 3.4 million year-end RSUs to the company’s employees, of which 1.1
million RSLUs require future service as a condition of delivery,  These awards are subject o additional conditions as
outlined in the award agreements. Generally, shares underlying these awards, ner of required withholding tax,
deliver over a three-vear pertod ban are subject 1o post-vesting transfer restrictions through January 2019, These
awards are not included in the above able,

3
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NOTES TOTHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013
SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (contimued)
Stock options

Stock options granted to employees generally vest as outlined in the applicable stock option agreement. Mo options
have been granted since 2000, In general, stock options expire on the tenth anniversary of the grant date, although
they may be subject to earlier termination or cancellation under certain circumstances in accordance with the terms of
the applicable stock option agreement and The Goldman Sachs Amended and Restated Stock Incentive Plan (*SIP") in
effect at the time of grant.  The activity related to these stock options is set forth below:

31 December 2013 31 December 20012
Weighted Weighted
average AVErage
Mo. of share exercise Mo, of share exercise
options  price (LIS5) oplions price (USS)
Ctstanding at the beginning of the year 10,256,821 Q055 10,875,522 BOLE9
Exgrcised {41,542) 96,08 (6 16,250) TE.95
Expired (5401 96,08 (2451} TE.ET
Dutstanding at the end of the year 10,214,739 90.53 10,250,821 90.55
Exercisable at the end of the year 10,214,739 90.53 10,256,821 90,55

For those options exercised during (e year, the weighted average share price at the date of exercise was US5153.08
(2012: USS118.82), The options outstanding as a1 31 December 2003 and 31 December 2012 are et forth below:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012
Weighted Weighted
avernge average
Mo, af share remaining Mo, of share rFemdaining
options  contractual options contraciual
outstanding life (vears) outstanding life (vears)
Exercise Price
575.00-589.90 9,078,709 5.00 9078709 6,00
590.00-5119.99 . . 42,082 0.92
5120,00-5134.99 288,720 1.92 288,720 2.92
$135.00-5194.99 - - - .
£195.00-5200.99 847,310 1.51 £47,310 4.51
Ouistanding at the end of the year 10,214,739 10,256,821

T4
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NOTE =31 I I
TAX ON FROFIT ON ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
a.  Amnalysis of tax charge for the vear:
Year Ended Year Ended
31 December 2013 31 December 2002
LIS57000 LTS5 (M
Current tax:
U.K. corporation tax 151,241 243,804
Adjustments in respect of previous periods 2,275 (30,343)
Owerseas taxation 50,153 50,447
Total current tax (see note 11h) 212,669 263,908
Deferred tax:
Provisions and ather timing differences (1175800 (148,721}
Effect of decreased tax rale on opening assel 38,317 18,523
Adjustments in respect of previous periods (4,504) 296
Total deferred tax (see note 19) (83.767) (119.%02)
Tax charge on profit on ordinary activities 128,902 144,006

b. Factors affecting tax charge for the year:

The difference between the total current tax shown above and the amount caleulated by applying the weighted average
rate of UK. corporation tax applicable to the company for the year of 23.25% (2012; 24.5%) to the profit on ordinary
activitics before tax is as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended

31 December 2013 31 December 2002

USS"000 LSS 004

Profit on erdinary activities before tax 297 566 527 066
Profit on ordinary activities multiplied by standard eate in the UK.

23.25% (2012: 24.5%) 69,184 202,852
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes 30,764 17,547
Accelerated capital allowances and other timing differences {10,529} (14.454)
Timing differences in respect of share-based compensation 178,608 174,187
Permanent differences {29,230) (86,624}
Pension contribution relief in excess of net pension cost charge (1,831) (1,3300
Tax losaes surrendered from group undertakings for nil consideration (30,8) (1.339)
Exchange differences and oiher 3446 3412
Adjustment to 1ax in respect of prios periods 2,275 (30,343)
Current tax charge for the year 212669 263,008

The timing differences in respect of share-based compensation comprises the net tax effect of the amounts charged to
the profit and loss account duning the year and awards delivered o employees during the year.
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

TANGIELE FIXED ASSETS

The movements in tangible fixed assets during the vear were as follows:

Fixtures,
Leasehald fittings &
improvements edquii pment Taotal
USS"000 LSS 000 LS3"000
Cost
Al 31 December 2012 24628 6,638 31,266
Addditions 374 1,295 1,669
[risposals (2) (12} (14)
Al 31 December 2003 25 (WM 7921 32,921
Depreciation
At 3] December 2012 11,501 3,701 15,202
Charge for the year (see note 4) 2,712 GE2 3,394
Disposals (2) (12) (14)
Al 31 December 2013 14,211 4,371 18,582
Net Book Value
Al 31 December 2013 10,759 3,550 14,339
Al 31 December 2012 13,127 2,937 16,064
FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
Othier
Shares in investments,
subsidiary other than
undertakings lpans Tutal
LS5 000 US3°000 LIS3" 00
Cost
Al 3] December 2012 499,682 1,267 500,949
Additions 206,162 - 296,162
Diisposals (795, 844) - {7495, 844)
A 31 December 2013 = 1,267 1,267
Amortisation
Ar 3] December 2012 - 69 )
Charge for the year - -
A3 December 2013 - 69 6%
MNet Book Value
At 31 December 2013 - 1,195 1,198
At 31 December 2012 409,682 1,198 200,880

Other investments, other than loans consists of exchange memberships,  The directors consader that the fair value of
investments in subsidiary undertakings and other investments, other than loans 15 not less than their book value,

T
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NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (continued)

The subsidiaries over which the company exercises control at the year end are listed below:

Holding and
Country of proportion of Class of units / Number Mature of

MName of company incorporation  voting rights  shares held held husiness
Goldman Sachs International Crrdinary

Investments Limited Great Britain 100W% shares 2 MNon-trading
Goldman Sachs (Cayman) Cayman Crdinary Financial

Limited Islands 1005 shares 250 SErVICEs
Ipopema B0 Fundusz Inwestycyjny Investment

Zamknicty Poland 100 . . fund

* This subsidiary undertaking is included in the financial statements on the basis of control obtained other than
through veting rights attached 1o shares.

Dwring the year, the following movemenis in shares in subsidiary undertakings took place:

The company acquired additional wnits for BRLS95 million (US5296 million} and redeemed wnits for BRL1,240
million (US%569 million) in Sphere Fundo De Investimento Multimercado — Investimento No Exterior Credito
Privado (*Sphere Fundo®). The company then transferred its remaining units in Sphere Fundo to Goldman Sachs
Group UK Limited, a fellow group undertaking. The consideration of US$191 million was satisficd by way of a
shom-term loan. The company realised a net loss on this investment of USS36 million due to the weakening of
Brazilian real against U5, dollar over the life of the invesiment,

On 22 MNovember 2013, the company was allotted 2 ordinary shares of USS1 each issued by Goldman Sachs
International Investments Limited, for a tofal consideration of USS2,

On 18 December 2013, the company sold 100 ordinary shares of USS1 each, being the entire share capital issued by
Cioldman Sachs Eurepe Limited to Goldman Sachs Group Holdings (U.K.) Limited, a fellow group undertaking, for a
total consideration of USS100. There was no gain or loss on sale.

O 23 December 2013, the company sold 2 ordinary shares of £2 each, being the entire share capital issued by
Goldman Sachs Securities (Nominees) Limited to Goldman Sachs Holdings (UK.}, the company’s immediate parent
undertaking. for a 1otal consideration of £2 (UUS53).  There was no gain or loss on sale,

The company has interests inoa number of special purpose vehicles and capital-guaramieed funds which do not meet
the definition of a legal subsidiary, bul give rise to the risks and rewards that are, in substance, no different than il they
were legal subsidiaries.  The activities of these special purpose vehicles and the capatal-guaranteed funds consist of
the issuance of loan notes under the terms of a repackaging programme.  These vehicles are consolidated n 1he
financial statements of Goldman Sachs Group UK Limited.

m”
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FINAMCIAL STATEME =31

EMBER

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS OWNED AND FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS SOLD, BUT NOT YET

PURCHASED

Financial instruments owned and financial instruments sold, bul not yet purchased comprise financial instruments and
mvestments within the operating activines of the company.  Financial instruments owned pledged as collateral
represents Ninancial instruments owned and pledged 1o counterparties that have the nght o deliver or repledge.

Financial instruments owned, including financial instruments pledged as collateral, comprises:

Cash instruments:

Government and agency obligations
Equities

Corporate debt

Commercial paper

Derivative instrumenis:
Interest rate

Credit

Equity

Foreign currency
Commodities

Financial instruments owned
Financial instruments owned pledged as collateral

Financial instruments sold, but not vet purchased comprises:

Cash instruments:

Government and agency obligations
Equities

Corporate debt

Derivative instruments:
Interest rate

Credit

Exquity

Foreign currency
Commodities

31 December 2013

31 December 20012

LSS 0 LISS (00
20,892,333 75,402, 194
34,740,279 33,955,630
11,826,957 12,280,613

3,391,803 475,132
70,851,372 72,203,569
236,486,102 298,333,721
77,176,857 104,822,971
68,647 432 65,673,030
57,238,024 40,281,289
5,705,004 5,165,141
445,253,429 514,276,154
516,104,801 586,479,723
489,841,270 561492911
26,263,531 24 986,812
516,104,501 586,479,723
M December 2013 31 December 2012

LIS$"000 Ussm o0
10,325,775 13,506,781
13,775,194 11,813,137

2663618 2,851,237
26,764,587 28,201,155
231,757 981 294 450,307
70,760,557 93,313,839
65,413,495 50 E39, 160
57,063,641 39,724,702
5,403 872 4,645 288
430,390 546 491,973,296
457,164,133 520,174,451
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17.

18,

19.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

COLLATERALISED AGREEMENTS

Included within the collateralised agreements are amounts of USS 133,304 million (2002; US5122,974 million) which

relate to group undertakings,

CASH AT BANK AND IN HAND

Following changes in industry practice governing client money, the accounting treatment in respect of client money
held under the FCA’s CASS Chapter 7 has changed.  As at 31 December 2013, U539 868 million of cash at bank and
in hand and USS7 458 million of debtors are no longer treated as the company”s assets with a corresponding liability
of US$17,326 million in other creditors.  The directors believe that the company has neither access 1o significant
benefits from the asset nor sufficient control to meet the required definition of assets.  In the prior year, cash at bank
and in hand and debtors included US39,947 million and US35,316 million, respectively, in respect of clicnt money,
with a corresponding liability of USS15,263 million in other creditors,

DEBTORS

Amounts due from broker / dealers and customers
Amounts due from parent and group undenakings

Deferred tax (see note 19)

Other debtors

Prepaymenis and acerued income
Corporation tax receivable

3 December 2013 31 December 2012

LISS" (M) LIS3"000
54,460,372 54,823,699
15,025,954 14,782,022

583,535 492,370

44,250 50,971
22,221 8,858
75,155 50,611
70,211,487 70,208,531

As at 31 December 2013, USS7458 million of debtors are no longer treated as the company’s assels with a
comesponding liability in other creditors (see note 16),  OF this amount, US53,355 million relates 1o amounts due
from broker / dealers and customers and USS4,103 million relates o amounts due from parem and group
undenakings. Inthe prior year, debtors incleded USE5.316 million, in respect of client money, with a corresponding
liabality in other creditors,  OF this amount, US31,571 million relates o amounts due from broker / dealers and
customers and US33,745 million relates o amounts due from parent and group undenakings,

Of the amounts due from broker £ dealers and customers, USS 180 million (2012: US5165 million) is due in more than
one year.  This relates 1o secured lending on a collateralised debt obligation.

The remaining debtors are all due within one year of the balance sheet date.

COLLATERALISED FINANCING

Included within collateralised financing are amounts of US$ 100,994 million (2012: US5106,135 million) which relate

1o group undertakings,

DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax balance comprises (sec note 17):
Depreciation in excess of capital allowances
Post-retirement bencfits

Other tming differences

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

USS"000 LIS3"000

2,960 6630
(31,278) (36, 128)
611,853 521,868
583,535 492,370
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

DEFERRED TAX {continued)

LISS"000
The movements in the deferred tax balance were as follows:
M3 Degember 2012 492,370
Transler g the profiv and luss sevount fon e yem (e wote 11a) 23,767
Transfer o the stamement of toral recognised gains and losses for the year 8712
Foreign exchange losses {1,314}
Al 31 December 20013 583,515

Other timing differences mainly relates to deferred tax in respect of share-based compensation,

OTHER CREDITORS
Other creditors, all of which are payable within ane year of the balance sheet date, comprise:

31 December 20013 31 December 2012

LISS"000 LISS"000
Bank loans and overdrafis 70,805 432,324
Dbt securities issued (see note a) 18,960,736 16,292,350
Amounts due to broker / dealers and customers (see note b) 58457370 TT. 468, 307
Amounts due to parent and group undertakings {see note b and ¢} 53,130,793 58,806,627
Amounis due to subsidiary undertakings - 1444
Accrual for management charges pavable to parent and group
undertakings (see note 21d) 1,523,523 1,112,336
Other taxes and social security costs 234, 419 211,513
Other creditors and accruals 972029 £75,087
133,349,677 155,199 988

@, OF deb secunities issued, USS6,724 mallion (200 2: UISS5,343 million) is secured by securities which have been
pledged as collateral, of which US3437 million (2012: USSTSE million) relates o amounts due to parent and
group undertakings and US$6,287 million (2012: USS4,585 milliony relates 1o third parties.  This pledged
collateral 15 either recognised within financial instruments owned or sourced through collmeralized agreemems,

OF debt securities issued, US%12,237 million (2012: USS$10,949 million) is unsecured, of which USS3,820
million (2012: U5%$3,430 million) relates to amounts due 1o parent and group undenakings and US58,417
million {2012: US57,519 million) relates to amounts due to third parties.

b Asar 3] December 2003, US517,326 million of other creditors are no longer ircated as the company’s liabilities
(see note 16),  Ofthis amount, US513.913 million relates 1o amounts due o broker / dealers and customers and
LIS53,413 mallion relates w amounts due w parent and group undertakings. In the prior year, other creditors
included LISS 15,263 million, in respect of client money.  OF this amount, USS12,667 million relates (o amounts
due 1o broker £ dealers and customers and US$2.506 million relates 1o amounts due 1o parent and group
undertakings,

c.  Of amounts due to parent and group undertakings, US337 857 million (2012 US$41.438 million) relates 1o
shorl-term unsecured bomrowings from affiliates, including Group Inc.
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M THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 201

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

USE 000 US$"000

Long-term subordinated loans (see note a) 6,458,000 8,508,000

Dbl securities issued (see note b) 4,205,847 3,784.372

Amounts due 1o parent and group undertakings (see note ¢ 3,549,630 20,878
Acerual for management charges payable to parent and group

undertakings (see note d) 1,118,204 855,338

15,331,681 14,968,558

a.  The amounts outstanding at 21 December 2013 and 31 December 2012 include long-term subordinated loans
from growp undertakings. The loans are unsecured and carry interest at a margin over the U.S. Federal
Reserve's federal funds rate. The margin is reset on a periodic basis to reflect changes in the GS Group’s
weighted average cost of debt.  Long-term subordinated loans of US56,458 million (2012: US39 508 million)
constitute regulatory capital as approved by the PRA, which is repayable otherwise than by instalmenis subject
to FRA approval and upon giving or receiving at least five years” notice to of from the group undertakings.

b.  The maturity of debit securities issued due afier more than ome vear is as follows:

31 December 2013 31 December 2012

LSS 000 LSS0

In mere than one year, bul not more than two years B67.877 1. 478957
I more than two years, but not more than five vears 1,990,917 Q86,079
In more than five years 1,247,053 1,319,136
4,205,847 3784372

Of debt securities issued, 532,050 million (2012: US52 266 million) is secured by securities which have been
pledged as collateral, of which 155545 million (2012: US5775 million) relates to amounts due to parent and
group undertakings and US51,505 million (20012: US$1,491 million) relates vo third parties. This pledged
collateral is either recognised within financial instruments owned or sourced through collateralised agreements,
Amounts due in more than five years predominantly relate (o structured debt secunities with maturities falling
from 20019 to 2050, Payments on these securities are typically referenced 1o underlying financial assets, which
are predominately interest rate related.

OF debt securities issued, USS2,156 million (2012: US51,518 millien) is unsecured, of which US$102 million
(2012: US5241 million) relates to amoums due to parent and group undenakings and USS2.054 million (20012:
USE1.27T mullion) relates to amounts due to third parties.

€ Amounts due (o parent and group undertakings relates to long-term unsecured borrowings from affiliates.  As at
31 December 2013, this includes a loan of USS400 million (2012: USS400 million) advanced by Restamove
Ircland Limited, a fellow group undertaking, under the terms of an uncommitted loan facility dated 26 June
2012. The facility is unsecured, carries interest at a variable rate and has a maturity of 1 July 2022,

d.  The accrual for managenent charges (per above and note 200 15 in respect of RSUs and Long-Term Incentive
Plans,

1]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMEER 201

PROVISION FOR LIABILITIES

1SS 000
At 1 Janoary 2003 15,305
Charge 1o the profit and loss account 5,000
Unlised dunng the year (2,939)
Foreign exchange loss 374
Al 31 December 2013 17,740

The provision of US518 million was made in respect of legal claims made against the company. Further details
relating 1o the provision have not been disclosed as permitted by accounting standard FRS12, “Provisions, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets’, on the grounds that it would be seriously prejudicial to do so.

SHARE CAPITAL
At 3] December 20012 and 31 December 2003 share capital compaised:

31 December 2003 3 December 2012
Mo, US$7000 Mo LSS 000
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Ordinary shares of USS1 each 533,447,150 533,447 533447150 533,447

533,447 533,447

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS® FUNDS AND MOVEMENTS ON
RESERVES

Share Capital reserve Profit

Called up Premivm (non- and loss
share capital account  distributable) account Tatal
LSS0 LSS0 USE'000  USS000 LSS 0
At 1 Januvary 2012 511,123 2,885,260 17,286 16,049,350 19463019
Profit for the financial year - . - 633,960 683,960
Other recognised gains for the vear . - - 46,474 46,474
Share-hased payments (see note 10) - . - 384,256 384,256

Management recharge related o
share-based payments (384,256)  (384,256)

Shares issued 34,189 1,238,002 - = L2729

Preference shares repaid (10.B65)  (1.260326) - {1,272,191)
At 1 January 2013 E33447 1,862,936 17,286 16,779,784 20,193,453
Profit for the financial year - - 168,664 168,664
Other recognised losses for the year - - - (61,646) (6],646)
Share-based payments (see note 10) - - - 524,935 524,935

Management recharge related o
share-hased payments (524.935)  (524.935)

At 31 December 2013 533,447 2862036 17,286 16.586,802 20,300,471
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NOTE THE L STATEM -3

RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENTS IN TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS® FUNDS AND MOVEMENTS ON
RESERVES {continued)

Pension reserve

31 December 2003 31 December 2012

US5"000 UIS5"004
Profit and loss account excluding pension surplus 16,730,413 16,567,314
Pension surplus (sce note 9) 156,380 212,470
Profit and loss account 16,886,502 16,779,754

DIVIDENDS PAID
The directors do not recommend ke payment of an ordinary dividend in respect of the year (20012: USSnil).
FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

. The company’s financial commitments and contingencies outstanding at the year end arise from contingent and
forward starting resale and securities borrowing agreements, forward starting repurchase and secured lending
agrecments, commitments o extend credit, letters of credit and other commitments, entered into in the ordinary
course of business. In addition, there are registered charges on the company's assets which have arisen in the
ordinary course of business.

b. The company leases certain buildings on long-term leases.  Under these leases, which are subject to
remegotiation at various intervals specified in the leases, the company pays all insurance, maintenance and repairs
of these properties.  The rentals that the company is committed to pay in the next year are as follows:

31 December 2013 31 December 2002
LSS 000 LSS 000
Maiturity of lease:
Lezss tham one year Q09 100
Between one and 1wo vears 221 1311
Between two and five years 1.274 1,290
Over five years 101,524 99,916
104,228 102,617

c.  The company is involved in the below legal proceedings, however it is not practicable to estimate an impact, if
any, of these proceedings.

1. The Evropean Commission announced in April 2011 that it was initiaing proceedings to investigate further
numerows financial services companies, including GSI, in connection with the supply of data related w
credit defauli swaps and in connection with profit sharing and fee arrangemenis for clearing of credin
default swaps, including potential anticompetinve practices.  On 1 July 2003, the Evropean Commission
issued 1o those financial services companies a Statement of Objections alleging that they collwded 1o limi
competition in the rading of exchange-traded unfunded credit denvatives and exchange trading of credit
default swaps more generally, and setting out its process for determining fines and other remedies.  GSI's
current understanding 15 that the proceedings related o profit sharing and fee arrangements for clearing of
credit default swaps have been suspended indefinitely.

w3
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GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS - 31 DECEMBER 2013

6. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES {continued)

ii.  Various alleged purchasers of, and counterparties involved in transactions relating 1o, morigage
pass-through certificaies, CDOs and other morigage-related products (including Aozora Bank, Lid., Basis
Yicld Alpha Fund (Master), Deutsche Zentral-Genossenschafibank and IKB Deutsche Industrichank AG)
have filed complainis in the United States against the company and cerain of its affiliates, generally
alleging that the offering documents for the securities that they purchased comained unirue statements of
material fact and material omissions and generally seeking rescission and / or damages, Ceriain of these
complaims allege fraud and seek punitive damages,

i GS1is the defendant in an action Gled on 21 Janwary 2014 with the High Court of Justice in Loadon by the
Libyan Investment Authority, relating 1o nine derivative transactions between the plaintfl and GSI and
secking, among other things, rescission of the transactions and unspecified equitable compensation and
damages exceeding USS1 billion.

17, ULTIMATE AND IMMEDIATE PARENT UNDERTAKINGS

The immediate parent undertaking is Goldman Sachs Holdings (UK.}, The parent company of the smallest group for
which consolidated financial statements are prepared is Goldman Sachs Group UK Limited. Both companies are
incorporated in Great Britain and registered in England and Wales. Copies of Goldman Sachs Group UK Limited's
consolidated financial statements are available on request from The Company Secretary, Goldman Sachs Group UK
Limited, Peterborough Court, 133 Fleet Street, London EC4A ZBE, United Kingdom.

The ultimate controlling undertaking and the parent company of the largest group for which consolidated financial
stmements are prepared is The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc., a company incorperated in the United States of America.
Copies of 113 consoliduted fnancial statements, as well as certain regulatory filings, for example Forms 10-0 and
10K, that provide additional information on the G& Group and its business activities, can be obtained from Investor
Relations, 200 West Street, New York, NY 10252, United States of America, the GS Group's principal place of
business, or at www.goldmansachs.comfshareholders!,
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2014 12 31
2014 12 31 GSI
2014 12 31 9,930 9,710 2013 12 31
8,164 7,961
2014 12 31 2014 12 31
13 667,823,041
13 24,404,391
14 219,233,902
15 77,642,208
26 3,586,142
992,689,684
13 (641,404,313)
16 (157,368,695)
18 (155,474,005)
(954,247,013)
38,442,671
GSI 2014 12 31
2014 2014 59
2013 52 2014 21

2013 298

€Y)

@

224/241



@

i. 2011

iii. GSI

12
iv. GSI

v. GSI

2013
( )
AG)
2014 21
2014
2014 23
2014 11 25

GSI

CDO

GSI

GSI

GSI

225/241

2014

10

EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

IKB

10
2014



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

©)

GSI

©

(D

226/241



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

©)

227/241



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2014
2014
2014
2014 16
2014
2014 27

2014 26

228/241



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

2019 225ETF

o
2014

@
144,000,000

®

*

12

®
2014

@
225 ( )
225

©)

134,153,173 (27 )

€Y)

( 13 X 25 26 )
26 25

229/241



EDINETOOOO
OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)
oOoOooodn

( 14 X 26 27 )
27 26

@

230/241



EDINETOOOO

OO000OO000O00DbDO000DOOdnoo(eessrs)

oOoOooodn

2019 225ETF
( )
( )
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
11,339.30 10,857.53 10,395.18 16,291.31 17,935.64
8,824.06 8,160.01 8,295.63 10,486.99 13,910.16
2014 2015 2015 2015 2015 2015
12
17,935.64 17,795.73 18,797.94 19,754.36 20,187.65 20,563.15
16,755.32 16,795.96 17,335.85 18,665.11 19,034.84 19,291.99

(
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Independent auditors report to the members of
GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL

(unlimited company)

Report on the financial statements

Our opinion

In our opinion the financia statements, defined below:

» give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and of its profit for the year then
ended;

* have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and

»  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

This opinion isto be read in the context of what we say in the remainder of this report.

What we have audited

The financial statements, which are prepared by Goldman Sachs International, comprise:

»  thebalance sheet as at 31 December 2013;

» theprofit and loss account and statement of total recognised gains and losses for the year then ended; and

* thenotesto the financial statements, which include other explanatory information.

The financia reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for example in
respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and considered future

events.

What an audit of financia statementsinvolves

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (‘1SAs (UK & Ireland)’).

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give

reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error.  This

includes an assessment of:

»  whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed,;

» thereasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and

* theoveral presentation of the financial statements.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies

with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or

materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. 1f we become aware of any

apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.
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Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors Report and Strategic Report for the financial year for which the financial

statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequeacy of accounting records and information and explanations received

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:

» we have not received al the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

» thefinancial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns. We have no exceptions to report

arising from this responsibility.

Directors remuneration
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors

remuneration specified by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Responsibilities for the financia statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Directors Responsibilities Statement set out on page 52, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give atrue and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and ISAs
(UK & Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board' s Ethical Standards for Auditors.
This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may

come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.
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Duncan McNab (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

7 More London Riverside

London

SE12RT

22 April 2014
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Independent auditors report to the members of
GOLDMAN SACHS INTERNATIONAL
(unlimited company)

Report on the financia statements

Our opinion
In our opinion the financia statements, defined below:

» give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2014 and of its profit and cash flows for
the year then ended;

*  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice; and
* have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.
This opinion isto be read in the context of what we say in the remainder of this report.

What we have audited

Thefinancial statements, which are prepared by Goldman Sachs International, comprise:

» thebalance sheet as at 31 December 2014;

» theprofit and loss account and statement of total recognised gains and losses for the year then ended;
» the statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

* thenotesto the financial statements, which include other explanatory information.

Certain required disclosures have been presented elsewhere in the Annual Report, rather than in the notes to the financial
statements. These are cross-referenced from the financial statements and are identified as audited.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting
Standards (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

In applying the financial reporting framework, the directors have made a number of subjective judgements, for example in
respect of significant accounting estimates. In making such estimates, they have made assumptions and considered future
events.

Opinion on other matter prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion the information given in the Directors Report and Strategic Report for the financial year for which the financial
statements are prepared is consistent with the financial statements.

Other matters on which we are required to report by exception

Adequacy of accounting records and information and explanations received
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion:
» we have not received al the information and explanations we require for our audit; or

» adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received from branches
not visited by us; or

» thefinancial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns.
We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.

Directors remuneration

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report to you if, in our opinion, certain disclosures of directors
remuneration specified by law are not made. We have no exceptions to report arising from this responsibility.
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Responsibilities for the financia statements and the audit

Our responsibilities and those of the directors

As explained more fully in the Statement of Directors Responsibilities set out on page 57, the directors are responsible for the
preparation of the financia statements and for being satisfied that they give atrue and fair view.

Our responsibility is to audit and express an opinion on the financial statements in accordance with applicable law and ISAs
(UK & Ireland). Those standards require us to comply with the Auditing Practices Board' s Ethical Standards for Auditors.

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the company’s members as a body in accordance with
Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose. We do not, in giving these opinions, accept or
assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other person to whom this report is shown or into whose hands it may
come save where expressly agreed by our prior consent in writing.

What an audit of financial statementsinvolves

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) (‘' 1SAs (UK & Ireland)’). An
audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable
assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether caused by fraud or error. This includes an
assessment of:

»  whether the accounting policies are appropriate to the company’s circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed,;

» thereasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by the directors; and

» theoverall presentation of the financial statements.

We primarily focus our work in these areas by assessing the directors judgements against available evidence, forming our own
judgements, and evaluating the disclosuresin the financial statements.

We test and examine information, using sampling and other auditing techniques, to the extent we consider necessary to provide
a reasonable basis for us to draw conclusions. We obtain audit evidence through testing the effectiveness of controls,
substantive procedures or a combination of both.

In addition, we read all the financial and non-financial information in the Annual Report to identify material inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently materially incorrect based on, or
materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acquired by us in the course of performing the audit. If we become aware of any
apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the implications for our report.

Duncan McNab (Senior Statutory Auditor)

For and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditors

7 More London Riverside

London

SE12RT

26 March 2015
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